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Expertise Beyond The Numbers---------

To the Members of City Council 
City of York, Pennsylvania 

Independent Auditors' Report 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of York, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of York, Pennsylvania's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The City of York, Pennsylvania's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of York, Pennsylvania 
as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultan ts 



To the Members of City Council 
City of York, Pennsylvania 

Emphasis of Matter 

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the City of York, Pennsylvania adopted new accounting guidance, 
implementing Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as 
Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages i through xxix, budgetary comparison information on pages 75 and 76, 
schedules of historical pension information on pages 77 through 79 and schedule of historical other post­
employment benefits information on page 80 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of York, Pennsylvania's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 26, 2014, 
on our consideration of the City of York, Pennsylvania's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City of York, Pennsylvania's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Oaks, Pennsylvania 
September 26, 2014 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER31, 2013 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of York's (City) financial performance provides an overview, 
perspective and analysis of the City's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2013. 
Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which begin with the Statement of 
Net Position on page 1. The discussion also focuses on the primary government and unless otherwise 
noted, component units are not included. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $62,731,593 (Net Position). 

o Net investment in capital assets, in the amount of $91,191,824, includes all capital 
assets including infrastructure. 

o Restricted net position with external restrictions imposed by creditors or laws or 
regulations of other governments amounted to $13,321,702. 

o Unrestricted net position, which is net position not restricted for any particular 
purpose, was ($41,781,933). 

• Over 2013, the City's net position decreased by $1,144,934. The business-type activities net 
position decreased by $1,441,649, primarily due to increase in budgeted transfers of $605,791, 
increase interest expense of $685,992, in accordance with applicable maturity schedules, and 
an increase in depreciation expense of $319,477, due to the completion of a large 
infrastructure project during the year ended December 31, 2013. Governmental activities net 
position increased by $296,715. 

• At December 31, 2013, the fund balances of the City's governmental funds were ($4,560,438). 
This was a decrease of$2,066,055 from December 31, 2012. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The City's financial report consists of several sections. Taken together, they provide a comprehensive 
financial look at the City. The components of the repoti include the independent auditors' report, 
management's discussion and analysis, and the basic financial statements (government-wide financial 
statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the basic financial statements). This report also 
contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements. 

The independent auditors' report briefly describes the audit engagement and renders an opinion 
regarding the material components of the City's financial position. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), prepared by City management, provides a narrative 
introduction and overview that users of the financial statements need to interpret the basic financial 
statements. The MD&A provides analysis of some key data that is presented in the basic financial 
statements and addresses any other currently known facts, decisions or conditions that are expected to 
have a significant effect on financial position or results of operations. 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 

The basic financial statements include the government-wide statements, fund financial statements, and 
the notes to the basic financial statements. 

• The government-wide financial statements focus on the entity-wide presentation using the 
accrual hasis of accounting. They are designed to be more corporate-like, in that all activities 
are consolidated into a total for the City. 

o The government-wide Statement of Net Position focuses on resources available for 
future operations. This statement presents a snapshot of the assets the City owns, the 
liabilities it owes, and the net difference. 

o The government-wide Statement of Activities focuses on gross and net costs of City 
programs and the extent to which such programs rely upon taxes and other revenues. 
This statement summarizes and simplifies the user's analysis to determine the extent to 
which programs are self-supporting and/or subsidized by other sources. 

• Fund financial statements focus separately on major Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, 
and Fiduciary Funds. 

o Governmental funds are used to account for the functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balances of 
expendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful 
in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements is narrower than that of 
the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information 
presented by the two in order to better understand the long-term impact of near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide 
reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 

The City reports three major governmental funds: ( 1) the General Fund, which 
accounts for all financial resources of the general government except those accounted 
for in another fund; (2) the Debt Service Fund, which accounts for the accumulation of 
resources, which are principally transfers from other funds, for the payment of general 
long-term obligation principal, interest, and related costs; and (3) the Capital Projects 
Fund, which accounts for the proceeds of debt issuances restricted for the acquisition 
and construction of capital facilities and other capital assets (excluding capital related 
costs financed by proprietary and fiduciary funds). Data from all the other 
governmental funds is combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 

data for each of these non-major governmental funds ts provided in the form of 
combining statements in supplementary information. 

o The City's proprietary fund financial statements follow the governmental fund 
financial statements and include the statement of net position, the statement of revenue, 
expenses, and changes in net position, and the statement of cash flows. The City 
maintains two different types of proprietary funds. 

• 

• 

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business­
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses 
enterprise funds to account for its lntermunicipal Sewer Fund, Sewer Fund, Ice 
Rink Fund, Sewer Transportation Fund, and White Rose Community 
Television Fund. 

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate 
costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses an internal 
service fund to account for the financing of insurance services, human resource 
services, information services, central services and business administration 
services provided to the other funds of the City, both governmental and 
enterprise, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

The City's major proprietary funds include the lntermunicipal Sewer Fund, Sewer 
Fund, and Ice Rink Fund. The Sewer Transportation Fund and White Rose 
Community Television Fund are the City's non-major enterprise funds. 

o Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government and are not reflected in the government-wide statements, because the 
City cannot use these assets to finance operations. The City's fiduciary funds are all 
classified as trust and agency funds. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much 
like that used for proprietary funds. 

The City has three pension trust funds and two agency funds. Individual fund data for 
each of these fund types is provided in the form of combining statements in 
supplementary information. 

• The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional disclosures required by 
governmental accounting standards and provide information to assist the reader in 
understanding the City's financial condition. The notes to the financial statements begin 
immediately following the basic financial statements. 

lll 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Other Required Supplementary Information is additional information consisting of a budgetary 
comparison schedule for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with budget and certain 
required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to 
provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. 

Other supplementary information, consisting of combining statements referred to earlier in connection 
with non-major governmental funds, trust funds, and agency funds, is presented immediately 
following the required supplementary information. 

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE: 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins with the Statement of Net Position. One of the most 
important questions asked about the City's finances is: is the City as a whole better off or worse off as 
a result of the year's activities? The statement of net position and the statement of activities report 
information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. 
In these statements, the City is divided into three kinds of activities: 

• Governmental Activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, 
including general government, sanitation, public safety, highways and streets, public 
works, parks and recreation, community development and planning, and other 
departments and programs. Properly taxes, occupational privilege taxes, earned 
income taxes, business privilege taxes, charges for services, and grants finance most of 
these activities. 

• Business-Type Activities - The City charges fees to customers to cover the cost of 
certain services that it provides. The City Sewer System is reported here, as is the City 
Ice Arena. 

• Component Units -The City includes two separate legal entities in this report: the 
York City Redevelopment Authority and City of Y ark General Authority. Although 
legally separate, these component units are important because the City is legally 
accountable for them. Additional financial information regarding the City's 
component units can be found in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of 
Activities of this report. The separately audited annual financial report of these entities 
may be obtained from the City Finance Office or at the City website at 
www.yorkcity.org under budget and finance. 

IV 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 

The analysis below focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the City's governmental 
and business type activities. 

Assets: 
Cash and investments 
Other assets 
Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities: --------
Other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position: 
Net investment in 

capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

TABLE 1 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

Governmental B usincss-type 
Activities Activities 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

$ 3,692,796 $ 3,316,914 $ 15,734,463 $ 16,065,199 
13,454,253 13,629,872 37,924,967 38,874,315 
53,340,399 51,872,250 88,518,301 92,324,874 

70,487,448 68,819,036 142,177,731 147,264,388 

16,568,561 14,750,175 841,477 930,474 
73,126,671 73,573,360 59,396,877 62,952,888 

89,695,232 88,323,535 60,238,354 63,883,362 

28,176,611 27,356,555 63,015,213 64,751,378 
1,503,700 1,429,818 11,818,002 12,228,198 

(48,888,095) ( 48,290,872) 7,106,162 6,401,450 

$(19,207,784) $(19,504,499) $ 81,939,377 $ 83,381,026 

Total Primary 
Government 

2013 2012 

$ 19,427,259 $ 19,382,113 
51,379,220 52,504,187 

141,858,700 144,197 124 

212,665,179 216,083 424 

17,410,038 15,680,649 
132,523,548 136,526,248 

149,933,586 152,206,897 

91,191,824 92,107,933 
13,321,702 13,658,016 

(41,781,933) (41,889,422) 

$ 62,731,593 $ 63,876 527 

Overall, total City assets and liabilities decreased by $3,418,245 and $2,273,3 l 1, respectively, for the 
year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in the City's total assets is the result of the following: 
total decrease in capital assets in the amount of $2,338,424 due to total capital outlays of $5,488,757 
(as explained in "Capital Assets" section) and depreciation expense of $7,824,299. The decrease in 
the City's total liabilities is the result of the following: increase in other liabilities totaling $1,729,389, 
total debt decrease in the amount of$6,690,941 (as described in "Long-Term Debt" section), and the 
increase in other post-employment liability in the amount of$2,626,109. 

Cash and investments represent 5.24% and 4.83% of the City's total governmental activities assets at 
December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. Of this amount, 38.06% or $1,017,932, at December 31, 
2013, and 27.77% or $921,050, at December 31, 2012, is restricted, primarily for financing the 
workers compensation and debt service payments. Additionally, the City operates and maintains the 
York City WWTP, 102 miles of sewer lines, and one pumping station which is reported in business­
type activities. The City's waste-water treatment plant serves six municipalities in addition to the 
City. The $12,855,766 and $13,121,127 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, in cash and 
investments allows for future maintenance, repair and replacement as well as improvement to the 
City's sewer facilities. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 

The governmental activities capital assets value is net of$75,446,387, or 58.58% and $71,900,865, or 
58.09% of accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. For the business­
type activities, the capital asset value is net of$66,537,876, or 42.91% and $62,380,135, or 40.32% of 
accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2013 and 2012. These percentage rates for depreciation 
reflect that the capital assets of the City, as a whole, have almost 50% of their useful life remaining 
and also reflect the City's commitment to effective and efficient use of resources to provide services. 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the government's financial 
position. The City's assets exceeded its liabilities by $62,731,593 and $63,876,527 for the years 
ending December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

By far the largest portion of the City's net position, 145.37% at December 31, 2013 and 144.20% at 
December 31, 2012, is the City's investment in capital assets. (e.g., streets, street-lights, buildings, 
land, playgrounds, and equipment); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. 
These capital assets are used by the City to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets 
are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported 
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must come from 
other sources, since the assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City's net position (21.24% and 21.38% at December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 
Of the $13,321,702 that is restricted at December 31,2013: $7,645,487 is the value of bond related 
accounts held for debt service payments, while the remaining amount is restricted to use for public 
works, community planning and development, workers' compensation insurance, revolving loans, and 
construction. Of the $13,658,016 that is restricted at December 31,2012: $8,136,289 is the value of 
bond related accounts held for debt service payments, while the remaining amount is restricted to use 
for community planning and development, workers' compensation insurance, and construction. 

The City's unrestricted net position balance of ($41,781,933) and ($41,889,422) at December 31, 
2013 and 2012, results from the recording of unfunded pension bonds, General Obligation Bonds, 
Series A of 1995 and Series B of 1998, in the amount of$30,108,049 and $31,436,595, respectively. 
Additionally, the unrestricted net position for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 included 
unfunded other post-employment liabilities in the amount of $17,384,781 and $14,758,672, 
respectively. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER31, 2013 

TABLE2 
CONDENSED STATEMENT CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER31, 2013 AND 2012 

Goverrunental Activities Business~ty~e Activities Total Primary Govenunent 
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Revenue: 
Charges for services $ 12,894,711 $ 13,813,062 $ 18,518,894 $ 18,504,147 $ 31,413,605 $ 32,317,209 
Operating grants and 

contributions 5,521,385 6,402,852 57,172 63,379 5,578,557 6,466,231 
Capital grants and 

contributions 2,526,228 2,375,868 2,526,228 2,375,868 
Property taxes 20,008,775 19,913,861 20,008,775 19,913,861 
Payment in lieu of 

ta.xes 207,222 534,397 207,222 534,397 
Business taxes 3,676,483 3,308,332 3,676,483 3,308,332 
Personal taxes 4,056,825 2,958,738 4,056,825 2,958,738 
Unrestricted grants 1,961,601 1,938,251 1,961,601 1,938,251 
Unrestricted 

investment camings 187,779 123,098 1,418,234 1,374,785 1,606,013 1,497 883 

Total revenues 51,041,009 51,368,459 19,994,300 19,942,311 71,035 309 71,310 770 

Expenses: 
General government 2,678,467 3,616,306 2,678,467 3,616,306 
Sanitation 3,068,955 3,143,849 3,068,955 3,143,849 
Public safety 29,981,637 28,364,190 29,981,637 28,364,190 
Highways and streets 1,367,076 1,203,236 1,367,076 1,203,236 
Public works 5,130,373 5,571,956 5,130,373 5,571,956 
Parks and 

recreation 1,877,564 2,225,990 1,877,564 2,225,990 
Conununity development 

and planning 3,586,481 4,677,708 3,586,481 4,677,708 
Other department"> 

and programs 1,648,604 1,675,881 1,648,604 1,675,881 
Interest on long~tcnn 

debt 3,985,679 3,766,163 3,985,679 3,766,163 
Intermtmicipal sewer 6,362,961 6,264,826 6,362,961 6,264,826 
Sewer 10,849,564 10,012,&96 10,849,564 10,012,896 
Ice rink 1,480,417 1,451,119 1,480,417 1,451,119 
Other enterprise flmds 162,465 159,024 162 465 159,024 

Total expenses 53,324,836 54,245,279 18,855 407 17,887,865 72,180 243 72,133,144 

Change in net position 
before trat1sfers (2,283,&2 7) (2,876,820) 1,13&,893 2,054,446 (1,144,934) (822,374) 

Transfers 2,5&0,542 1,974,751 (2,580,542) (1,974,751) 

Change in net positi011 296,715 (902,069) (1,441,649) 79,695 (1,144,934) (822,374) 
Net position, beginning of 

year (19,504,499) (18,602,430) 83,381,026 83,301,331 63,876,527 64,69& 901 

Net position, end of year $ (19,207,784) $ (19,504,499) $ 81,939,377 $ 83,381,026 $ 62,731,593 $ 63,876,527 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 

During 1995 and again during 1998, the City issued capital appreciation bonds and notes (bonds). 
Capital appreciation bonds are sold at a deep discount and amortized up to the face value of the bonds. 
Annual amortization results in interest expense for governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements, but not in the governmental fund financial statements. Additionally, repayment of 
debt, while consuming current financial resources in the governmental funds, has no effect on the net 
position of the governmental activities. In the same manner, issuance of debt, while providing current 
financial resources in governmental funds, has no effect on the net position of the governmental 
activities. Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the governmental 
activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful life and reported as 
depreciation expense. 

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the increase in net position of governmental activities resulted 
primarily from the increase in personal taxes approximating $1 million from the prior year due to Act 
32 and the method by which earned income tax collections were remitted to the City. This increase 
was offset by the accrual of$448,479 for interest on 2012 and 2013 minimum municipal obligation late 
payments. 

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the decrease in net position of governmental activities resulted 
primarily from the accrual of other post-employment liabilities in the amount of $2,363,838 and the 
accrual of $473,784 for interest on 2011 and 2012 minimum municipal obligation late payments. The 
other post-employment cost was allocated to all general government departments based on current 
employment. Personal taxes also decreased by $491,237 from the prior year due to Act 32 and the 
method by which earned income tax collections were remitted to the City. These amounts were offset 
by the increase in property taxes in the amount of $2,697,729, due to an increase in millage from 17.39 
to 20.37. 
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The City's business-type activities include the Intennunicipal Sewer Fund, Sewer Fund, Ice Rink 
Fund, Sewer Transportation Fund, and White Rose Community Television Fund. 

92.62% of the revenue for business-type activities is derived from charges for services. The City's 
sewer system is comprised of the sewage collection infrastructure, one pumping station and the staff 
and equipment for the maintenance thereof. Expenses include the City's share of the annual debt 
payment on the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and the costs of treatment of the wastewater. 
The costs of treatment are paid to the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund toward the cost of the operation of 
the WWTP and the debt service is paid to the City of York Sewer Authority. 

The City operates a state of the art regional WWTP that provides service to six municipalities in 
addition to the City. Each municipality, including the City, pays a share of the bond debt on the 
facility and pays the actual cost of treatment for the wastewater that the municipality sends to the 
facility for treatment. In addition, the facility provides industrial pretreatment testing and levies a 
charge by volume for certain material contained in the wastewater sent by industrial facilities. Each 
year in October, the City estimates the wastewater treatment charge per thousand gallons and the 
quantity of wastewater that will be sent to the plant by each municipality and then communicates the 
estimated costs for treatment in the subsequent year to each municipality. At the end of each year, the 
actual cost of treatment is determined. Municipalities that have paid more than necessary receive a 
credit on their fourth payment and municipalities that have paid too little must make up the difference 
in the first quarter of the subsequent year. Wastewater treatment charges are calculated by deducting 
from the actual expenditures of the plant all non-operating revenue, then all operating revenue that 
comes from customers other than the municipalities is deducted from the expenditures. The 
remainder is divided to determine the cost per thousand gallons that is charged to the participating 
municipalities. 

A portion of the wastewater that flows to the WWTP from other municipalities is transported through 
the City sewer interceptor system. Each township pays the City $.04 per thousand gallons for the 
wastewater that flows through the City system from the municipality. These payments are held by the 
City in the Sewer Transportation Fund for the maintenance, repair, and replacement of the sewer lines 
through which the Intermunicipal wastewater flows. 

The York City Ice Arena is a two-pad ice skating sports facility that was built and put into service in 
200 l. The Arena was built by the York City Recreation Corporation (YCRC) using tax exempt 
proceeds from a bond issue guaranteed by the City. It is situated on land owned by the City in the 
Memorial Park Recreation Complex. The Arena provides ice skating and other recreational programs 
and opportunities to the general public for a fee and also provides facilities for other public social 
events. 

In November 2003, the YCRC notified the City that it was unable to meet its bond payment 
obligation. The City honored the loan guarantee and transferred resources into the debt service 
account at M&T Bank to make the bond payments. The City exercised its remedies under the lease 
and loan agreement with the YCRC and assumed control of the Ice Arena. The City assumed 
operational control of the York City Ice Arena in November 2003. The City operated the facility 
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from January 1, 2004 to August 31, 2004. On September 1, 2004, Rink Management Services 
Corporation commenced managing the facility under contract with the City. 

Expenses and Program Revenues- Business-type Activities 
Year Ended December 31, 2013 
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As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows 
and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing 
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the year. 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of ($4,560,438) and ($2,494,383), respectively. The City's unassigned fund balance 
(deficit), which is available for spending at the government's discretion, was ($6,654,646) and 
($6, 168,929) at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The remainder of the fund balance at 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 is restricted for 1) public works in the amount of $379,564 and 
$359,759, respectively, 2) community development in the amount of $86,041 and $128,899, 
respectively, 3) debt service in the amount of $581,869 and $4R3,552, respectively, and 4) capital 
projects in the amount of $1,046,734 and $2,702,336, respectively. 
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The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At December 31, 20 13 and 2012, unassigned 
fund balance of the general fund was ($5,715,996) and ($4,948,629), respectively. 

The fund balance of the City's general fund decreased by $767,367 during the year ended December 
31, 2013. Key factors in this increase are as follows: 

• Accrual of $448,479 for interest on 2012 and 2013 minimum municipal obligation late 
payments. 

• Rising pension costs and rising health care costs for all City employees. 

The fund balance of the City's general fund decreased by $627,414 during the year ended December 
31,2012. Key factors in this decrease are as follows: 

• Increase in real estate tax revenue of$2,687,101 due to an increase in millage from 17.39 to 
20.37. 

• Accrual of $473,784 for interest on 2011 and 2012 minimum municipal obligation late 
payments. 

• Rising pension costs and rising health care costs for all City employees. 

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $581,869 and $483,522 for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The net increase (decrease) in fund balance for the year 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 in the debt service fund was $98,317 and ($957,741), 
respectively. The increase for the year ended December 31, 2013 is due to lease payment revenue 
totaling $147,712, which was previously recorded in the general fund. The decrease for the year 
ended December 31, 2012 is due to debt service payments increasing by $824,241 in 2012. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City's proprietary fi.mds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position of the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund, the Sewer Fund, and the Ice Rink Fund at 
December 31, 2013 amounted to zero, $4,834,659, and ($850,178), respectively. Unrestricted net 
position of the Intermunicipal Sewer Fund, the Sewer Fund, and the Ice Rink Fund at December 31, 
2012 amounted to zero, $4,365,878, and ($779,444), respectively. The total increase (decrease) in 
net position for these funds for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $73,969, ($1,999,033), and 
$71,796, respectively. The total increase (decrease) in net position for these funds for the year ended 
December 31, 2012 was $175,705, ($957,958), and $252,097, respectively. The Sewer Fund's net 
decrease in net position lor the year ended December 31, 2013 increased by over $1 million from the 
prior year mainly due to an increase in interest expense of $685,992, in accordance with applicable 
maturity schedules, and an increase in transfers out of $478,710, in accordance with budgeted 
transfers. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the 
discussion of the City's business-type activities. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

General Fund 

Revenue and expenditures for most of the City's general operations are accounted in the City's 
General Fund. These operations include general government, sanitation, public safety, highways and 
streets, public works, community development and planning, and other departments and programs. 
For the year ended December 31, 2013, the final revenue budget, including transfers-in, was 
$39,740,876 and the final expenditure budget, including transfers-out, was $39,326,461. 

The City adopts a budget pursuant to the City Charter and ordinances by December 31 of the 
preceding year. Over the course of the budget year, budget transfers and budget amendments occur. 
Budget transfers are approved by the business administrator within the limits of discretion granted to 
that officer by the City Ordinances. Budget amendments are submitted for approval to City Council 
in the nature of a bill, which, after adoption by Council, becomes an ordinance. Budget transfers and 
amendments are adopted to make resources available to pay for expenditures that may have exceeded 
the amounts anticipated and to account for revenue and expenditures associated with grants that 
become available during the budget year. Transfers and amendments are also used to move resources 
from contingency accounts within funds to accounts where the resources are required. 

In 2013, the single largest revenue item in General Fund was taxes at $23,039,253. Actual taxes 
included $15,701,033 in real estate taxes, $3,293,121 in business taxes, $4,045,099 in income and 
local service taxes. The second largest item includes charges for services, which at $8,440,54 7 
includes sanitation fees of$5,318,562. 

The City had a significant negative variance between final budget and actual in the grants and 
contributions line item in the amount of $653,430 due to receiving approximately $596,000 less of 
contributions in lieu of taxes than anticipated. Charges for services were under budget by $540,451 
due to shortfall of police reimbursements of approximately $448,500. Fines and forfeits were under 
budget by $195,463 due to shortfall in ticket notice fees and fines remitted by the magistrates. 

Total General Fund expenditures were $38,497,911 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The 
single most expensive activity in the general fund is public safety, which is comprised of police and 
fire-rescue services, which amount to $27,994,840, or 72.72% of the General Fund actual 
expenditures for the year ended December 31,2013. Public safety expenditures were $1,654,996 over 
budget during the year ended December 31, 2013 mainly as a result of an arbitration award totaling 
$1,263,664 to City fire employees for retroactive payroll. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION: 

Capital Assets 

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounts to $141,858,700 and $144,197,124, respectively. This 
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, land improvements, equipment and furniture, and 
infrastructure. The total decrease in the City's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year 
was 1.62% (a 2.83% increase for governmental activities and a 4.12% decrease for business-type 
activities). 

Major capital asset events during the year ended December 31, 2013 included the following: 

• 101 South George Street building renovations totaling $3,826,434. 

• 50 West King Street building renovations totaling $41,090. 

• Roosevelt Avenue improvements totaling $72,430. 

• Street improvements totaling $316,859 

• Police station security cameras totaling $70,000. 

• Roof replacement totaling $149,761. 

• Dell PC workstations totaling $149,065. 

Major capital asset events during the year ended December 31, 2012 included the following: 

• 10 I South George Street building renovations totaling $2,343,117. 

• 50 West King Street building renovations totaling $356,306. 

• Memorial Park improvements totaling $260,824. 

• White Rose Community Television equipment totaling $120,452. 

• South Pine Streetscape improvements totaling $104,738. 

• Roosevelt Avenue Channel totaling $111,4111. 

• Various building and system addition and improvements were completed in the Sewer 
Fund's WWTP at a cost of$1,853,953. 
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• Poorhouse Siphon replacement of sewer system totaling $106,801. 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note 11 on page 43 of this report. 

Long-Term Debt 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the City had total general obligation bonds and notes outstanding of 
$49,045,171 and $51,508,736, respectively. Revenue bonds in the amount of $58,695,910 and 
$62,194,243, respectively, represent bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources. 

The City's total debt decreased by $6,690,941 during the year ended December 31, 2013. The City 
entered into a new capital lease during 2013 for Dell PC workstations for $149,065. An increase of 
$3,194,118 in accretion of capital appreciation bonds, was offset by $10,034,124 in debt repayments. 

The City's total debt decreased by $6,156,878 during the year ended December 31, 2012. The City 
entered into new capital leases during 2013 for ten Mitsubishi Outlanders for $146,100. An increase 
of $3,476,647 in accretion of capital appreciation bonds, was offset by $9,779,625 in debt 
repayments. 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in note 13 on page 47 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES: 

As long as Pennsylvania's structure for providing and paying for municipal services remains rooted in 
a colonial era governmental and tax structure, City leadership will be challenged to maintain the level 
of services necessary to a healthy community while minimizing the loss of City residents seeking to 
escape a crushing property tax burden. This burden is made heavy by the need to provide expensive 
public safety services to non-residents working in the city and to property owners exempt from 
payment of real estate taxes. Notwithstanding the obstacles, City officials will continue to strive to 
provide City residents with the best quality of life, safety and public amenities possible with the 
resources available. 

Ironically, the loss of City residents due to the real estate tax burden is increasing the need for 
substantial infrastructure improvements in areas that were formerly sparsely populated. Suburban 
sprawl is directing development away fi"om areas already served by the public improvements that 
support human activities. The concentration of infrastructure in the core urban area of the City has the 
capacity to handle additional residents and tax generating businesses. There is a high proportion of 
unoccupied space in the core downtown area, but the vicious cycle of high levels of additional out­
migration and stagnant assessed value of taxable properties perpetuates more out-migration. There is 
a downside to the concentration of residential, commercial and industrial activity in an urban 
environment, surrounded by suburban areas, especially in a state like Pennsylvania where the primary 
funding source to pay for public services is real estate tax. A community of forty three thousand 
people with thirty thousand commuters will need more public safety resources, more waste water 
treatment capacity, more school facilities and resources than a community with half the population. 
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But a concentration of population does not translate into larger amounts of resources to pay for public 
services because many users are not being required to pay for these services through a fair share of 
taxes. 

A good example of the fiscal strains brought on by the reliance on real estate tax combined with urban 
density of population is a comparison of school district student populations and tax base. 

2012 Real Estate Tax Base per Student 
School District R/E Tax Base Student Population Tax Base/Student 

York City $ 1,010,000,000 7,658 $ 131,888 

York Suburban $ 1,780,977,643 3,000 $ 593,659 

Central York $ 2,871,702,764 5,572 $ 515,381 

West York $ 1,534,054,155 3,000 $ 511,351 

The York City School District tax base is about $1 billion dollars and that tax base must support over 
7,600 students. Since 2008, the median sales price of a home in York City declined from $68,000 to 
$30,161 or 55%. In contrast, the York Suburban tax base is approximately $1.8 billion dollars and 
must support about 3,000 students. Likewise, Central York School District has about 5,600 students 
and a tax base of $2.8 billion to pay for their education. Obviously, the York City School District 
suffers the burdens of fiscal imbalance that do not stress the surrounding suburban districts. 

The stress of the fiscal imbalance is exacerbated by the concentration of poverty in the City. The rate 
of poverty in the City approaches 40% but the rate of poverty amongst students in the York City 
School District approaches 90%. The rates of poverty continue to grow because of the concentration 
oflow income housing, social services, public transportation, etc., in the City. 

Based on the above summary data provided by the York Adams Tax Bureau, the average income of 
taxpayers whose taxable income is greater than $0 has steadily increased since 2004 at an average rate 
of 2.03%. However, this growth is not enough to offset the decline in the total gross wage base 
averaging (2.2%) over the same period. 
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The same kind of fiscal imbalance plagues the City municipal government. Details of the imbalance 
are a little different and involve the City as the hub of the metropolitan area. Although the population 
of the City is a bit over forty three thousand, on any given business day there are approximately an 
additional thirty thousand non-resident commuters in the City for the majority of the day. 
Furthermore, this number more than doubles to account for transients such as customers, clients, 
patients, citizens, etc. being served by the businesses, professionals, educational or government 
facilities located in the City. 

Because the City is the county seat and the urban hub of the metropolitan area, over thirty seven 
percent of the real estate value in the City is tax exempt. The tax exempt real estate consists of post­
secondary schools, county, state and federal government buildings, a hospital, churches, social service 
agencies, non-school educational venues and charities, etc. Moreover the agencies that occupy the tax 
exempt real estate serve large populations who do not live in the City. Every non-city resident who 
attends college, receives health care, uses state and county government services, attends religious 
services, receives social services, enjoys entertainment at certain venues, or receives charitable 
assistance has that service subsidized by the tax paying residents of the City. The City has made a 
concerted effort to collect payments in lieu of taxes from tax exempt properties but these efforts have 
netted only about $300,000 or just 3% of the revenue lost by tax exemptions. 

2014 City of York Real Estate Tax Base 
Type Units Value %Split 

Apartments 234 $ 46,071,617 2.91% 

Commercial 1,226 233,596,280 14.76% 

Industrial 335 83,174,149 5.26% 

Residential 12,600 627,688,347 39.67% 

Exempt 916 591,775,364 37.40% 

Total 15,311 $ 1,582,305, 757.00 100.00% 

Source: York City Treasurer 

With over a third of the real estate tax base being exempt from tax collections, city residents and 
businesses alike burden a disproportionate share of taxation comparable to most third class 
Pennsylvania cities. In contrast, the following table lists theY ork County municipalities with the five 
largest real estate tax base values and their respective percentage of tax exempt. 
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largest R/E Tax Bases in York County 
Municipality Tax Base %Exempt 

Springetts bury 

York Township 

Manchester Township 

Fairview 
West Manchester 

Dover 

Source: York City Treasurer 

2,283,058,204 

2,186,370,145 

1,689,223,297 

1,603,437,825 

1,468,520,903 
1,135,524,044 

9.5% 

5.4% 

6.1% 
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5.1% 
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Likewise the earned income tax structure is flawed. In 2013, City residents received earned income of 
about $344 million dollars while commuters earned $773 million in the City. The only tax revenue 
received l:f01n the commuters is a $52 annual tax called a Local Services Tax. Each commuter paid $1 
per week to the City, totaling about approximately $38 thousand dollars per week in 2013. However, 
the cost of providing services such as public safety, traffic signals, street lights, storm water 
management, etc. was $750 thousand dollars per week in 2013. Less affluent City residents are 
forced to subsidize the conditions that the more affluent non-city residents rely upon for their 
livelihood. Many of those commuters are employed by the very agencies that occupy the tax exempt 
real estate. In Pennsylvania, all of the earned income tax is generally paid to the place you live, none 
to the place that you work. Commuters pay no earned income taxes to the City to help offset the cost 
of services and infrastructure that they have available at their place of employment. 

As shown below, 88% of City gross wages are earned by this commuter group. 

2013 Gross Wages 

York City Residents working in York City 

York City Residents (Self Employed/Self Pay) 

Non-Residents taxable wages in York City (total) 

Source: York Adams Tax Bureau. 

$ 

$ 

Wages 

90,793,782 

18,809,199 

773,021,750 

882,624,731 

%of 
Total 

10% 

2% 

88% 

100% 

This regressive taxation is further exacerbated by a 12.06% decline in city resident earned income 
from 2007-2011, while earned income of suburban residents in all contiguous municipalities rose by 
as much as 20%. 

The City finished 2012 with a ($4,948,629) accumulated deficit in the general fund. The deficit 
increased by $767,367 in 2013 resulting in an accumulated deficit at the end of2013 of ($5,715,996). 
In 2014, firefighters received an arbitration award resulting in $1.3 million in accrued wages payable 
as of year-end 2013. 
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Since 2008, the City has maintained cash flow by delaying the payment of its pension minimum 
municipal obligation (MMO) to the subsequent year. However, as the delayed payment approaches 
the full amount of the MMO, the ability of the City to continue unreduced operations becomes more 
tenuous. Eventually resources will be exhausted before the City reaches the end of the year and 
services will be drastically reduced. 
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Source: Conrad Siegel Actuaries 

Delaying the MMO payment also ends up costing the City in interest payments. Although the delayed 
MMO payment<; reduce stress on cash flow, that stress reduction comes at a high cost. As of 
December 31, 2013, total interest owed on delayed MMO payments was $963,315. The one saving 
benefit of the late payment of the MMO, as opposed to borrowing from an outside entity is that the 
8% interest paid to the fund is paid into the pension fund and is sometimes the best performing fixed 
income investment. Additionally, the City pension funds were underfunded by approximately $65 
million as of January 1, 2013. Over time, the interest payments will accelerate the reduction of that 
underfunding. The 2012 MMO was not fully paid until the beginning of2014. The 2013 MMO will 
not be fully paid until early 2015. 
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Source: Conrad Siegel Actuaries. Funding levels are as of January 1, 2013. 

Like 2008-2012, 2013 was a challenging year for the City of York's governmental funds. The 
continuing trend is for costs to increase, and for revenue to remain steady, as impacted by local trends 
and the physical and legal conditions that prevail in Pennsylvania. The challenge is to find a way to 
make an antiquated revenue generating system yield adequate revenue to pay rising costs without 
further impoverishing the local population while, at the same time, struggling to wring every penny of 
savings from the City's expenditure obligations. Employee health care, public safety pensions, the Act 
Ill labor relations process, and the antiquated and inadequate methods by which revenue is raised to 
pay for municipal services continue to work together to challenge the City officials' creativity in 
balancing revenue and expenditures. 

Except for the real estate tax, the admissions tax and the parking tax, tax rates are fixed by statute. The 
City may reduce the rates, but may not increase the rates for earned income tax, the business privilege 
and mercantile taxes, and the local services tax. The City's current parking tax rate is 15% and has no 
limit. However, there are market limits and, at about $215,000 per year, it is a small part of the total 
general revenue of the City. 

The admissions tax rate is 5%. The current real estate tax rate is 20.37 mils. This rate was set in 2012 
and has remained the same for 2013 and 2014. From 2005 to 2012, the real estate tax rate increased 
by almost 51%. The municipal tax rate in York City is currently 71% higher than the next highest tax 
rate in the county (York Haven). The following table is a summary of the real estate tax rates in the 
municipalities immediately surrounding the City. 

XX 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER31, 2013 

Surrounding Municipalities Composite Real Estate Tax Rates 

These tax increases are driven by many different pressures, but the fundamental issue is that there is 
no natural growth in the City tax base and, thus, no natural growth in tax revenue. On the other hand, 
costs increase in response to local, state, national and international trends. While the City has been 
able to hold the rate steady for three years, cost pressures are going to make that very difficult in 
2015. 

The minimum municipal annual pension obligation payments (MMO) is supported by the City general 
fund. In 2005, the City contribution to the employee pension funds was $2 million. Largely due to 
factors outside of the control of the administration such as market performance and the negative long 
term financial impacts of arbitrated labor negotiations, the annual obligation increased over 140% to 
$4.9 million in 2006. The next few years continued to see steady increases in the annual obligation. 
However, in 2011, the MMO rose by 44% to $7.8 million annually in response to the effect the 
housing market crash had on the pension fund investments. 

Due to its relatively high level of unfunded pension liabilities, Pennsylvania categorizes the City's 
pension plans as "moderately distressed". Subsequently, the City was been permitted through Act 44 
to make use of several capabilities to relieve the financial stress of high MMO payments. For 
example, the City was allowed to reduce its normal MMO payments by 25% for a four year period 
beginning in 2011. Taking advantage of these special forms of MMO relief, the City MMO for 2011 
was $5.9 million and was $6.0 million in 2012. In 2013, the MMO dropped by $300,000 to $5.7 
million. In 2014, the MMO increased by just under $50,000 to approximately $5.8 million. With the 
expiration of the relief provided by Act 44 of 2010, the 2015 MMO is projected to rise by $2.44 
million dollars in addition to a $345,000 rise in the City's 1995 pension bond annual payment. 
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Public safety costs, particularly police and firefighter labor costs, continue to rise faster than the rate 
of inflation. The following table summarizes general fund expenditures from 2004-2013. 

General Fund Expenditures 2004-2013 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

General 
Government 3,469 5,181 2,022 2,033 1,932 2,077 

Sanitation 2,673 2,614 2,842 2,960 3,030 2,982 

Public Safety 16,514 17,312 21,005 21,914 22,899 24,794 

Highways& 
Streets 503 504 569 537 539 549 

Public Works 1,932 1,858 1,943 2,009 2,332 2,292 

DECO 1,542 1,992 2,161 2,072 2,354 2,242 

Other 
Departments 92 116 120 95 86 117 

Total Current 26,725 29,577 30,663 31,620 35,180 35,051 

*Expenditures (excludes debt service) 

**All$ shown in the following table is reported on a 1,000 scale 
Source: City of York Annual Financial Audits 
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3,075 3,107 

26,547 26,984 
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2,146 2,175 

194 203 

37,161 37,961 

2013 

1,772 

3,028 

27,995 

688 

2,555 

2,233 

195 

38,466 

Outside of public safety costs, the general fund budget has increased by 2.54% over a 10 year period. 
The administration has managed to keep costs in check with an annual growth rate of approximately 
0.25%. And despite reductions in staffing and equipment for the Fire and Police departments, legacy 
costs continue to increase annual operating expenses at an unsustainable rate far exceeding inflation 
and the consumer price index. 
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Another result of the trends is that the share of resources devoted to other general fund activities has 
shrunk or remained stagnant. The following table illustrates what percentage of the general fund 
budget is allocated to each major area of operation. 

General Fund Expenditures 2004-2013 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

General Government 13.0% 17.5% 6.6% 6.4% 5.5% 5.9% 5.6% 5.0% 5.4% 4.6% 

Sanitation 10.0% 8.8% 9.3% 9.4% 8.6% 8.5% 8.2% 8.3% 8.2% 7.9% 

Public Safety 61.8% 58.5% 68.5% 69.3% 65.1% 70.7% 71.0% 71.4% 70.9% 72.8% 

Highways & Streets 1.9% 1.7% 1.9% 1.7% 1.5% 1.6% 1.5% 1.6% 1.7% 1.8% 

Public Works 7.2% 6.3% 6.3% 6.4% 6.6% 6.5% 6.4% 7.3% 7.3% 6.6% 

DECD 5.8% 6.7% 7.0% 6.6% 6.7% 6.4% 6.9% 5.8% 5.7% 5.8% 

Other Departments 0.3% 0.4% 0.4% 0.3% 0.2% 0.3% 0.4% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 

Total Current 100% 100% 100% 100% 94% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

*Expenditures (excludes debt service) 
Source: City of York Annual Financial Audits 

With the $2.4 million dollar increase in the MMO for 2015, the City anticipates that the public safety 
share of general resources will rise to nearly 75%. If this trend continues, then by 2020 Public Safety 
will consume more than 80% of the general fund budget. 

~----·······------·--·--··--·--··-------· ·-··--·--- ·--··---····--·-·-·····1 
i Public Safety as a Percentage of Total Expenditures i 

75.00% " ... ······················· .......... .-.,. -- .................... - ................ l 
i , 

70.00% ' 
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The Act 111 public safety arbitration process continues to contribute to the steep rise in public safety 
costs. Notwithstanding the high MMO payments to reduce the $39.5 million unfunded liability at 
January 1, 2013 in the police pension fund, the arbitration process awarded enhanced pension benefits 
to police officers. These enhanced benefits included a Deferred Retirement Option Plan and what is 
called a Pittsburgh Plan. 

The Pittsburgh Plan allows an officer with twenty years six months of service to leave the police force 
and continue to contribute to the fund the amount that would have been contributed if s/he continued 
to work. When s/he reaches the age of retirement, the pension benefit will be based upon what the 
officer would have been earning if s/he had remained on the force to age 50. Since the officers 
contributions are significantly less than the annual normal cost, the City must fund a pension benefit 
for an employee who is no longer providing service to the City and, at the same time, funding their 
replacement. A coalition of government and business organizations is working to convince the 
General Assembly to make changes to Act 111, but no legislation has resulted from those efforts yet. 

In 2005, the City conducted an in depth financial study and prepared a five year budget projection. 
The City employed the aid of a public finance consultant, Public Financial Management (PFM). PFM 
made suggestions and recommendations to reduce costs and increase revenue. Since that time, the 
City has made efforts and progress on implementing most of those suggestions and recommendations. 
A key recommendation was to reduce labor costs by modifYing the employee health plan design and 
by limiting wage increases over the coming years. 

In 2010, the City hired PFM to update the study and develop a new 5 year projection for the non­
public safety departments. That new report was delivered, with revisions, on November 1, 2011. The 
analysis and recommendations were reviewed and many of them were implemented in 2011 and 2012. 
The report included strong recommendations that the growth in the City's personnel costs should be 
slowed. In analyzing this recommendation, City staff contracted with the Waters Consulting Group, 
Inc. in 2012 to compare the wage growth of City employees as compared to other external indices. A 
comparison of the growth in the City's personnel costs determined that they were not out of line with 
either growth in the Consumer Price Index (CPI), nor with household salary growth trends in the 
surrounding region. Indeed, City employee compensation in both public safety and non-public safety 
personnel is beneath that in the surrounding municipalities. 

The following table contains data produced by the Economic Research Institute (ERI). ERI is a 
trusted source that compiles robust salary survey, job competency, cost of living and executive 
compensation data. This methodology assigns a score to each organizations compensation package 
that can be compared to other organizations. The ERI Indicator was used by the Waters Consulting 
Group to compare the City compensation of uniform and non-uniform personnel to selected 
neighboring municipalities. This data is summarized in the following table and illustrates that the 
City of York is in-line with market averages. 
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CITY OF YORK, PA 

Geographical Differentials for Benchmark Organizations 

ERI Indicator 

City of York, PA 96.9 

Benchmark Organization ERI Indicator Geo Diff% 

Borough of Columbia, PA 95.8 1.1% 
Borough of Hanover, PA 95.7 1.2% 

Borough of Norristown, PA 106.5 -9.6% 

City of Bethlehem, PA 99.2 -2.3% 

City of Cranberry, PA 90.6 6.3% 

City of Hagerstown, MD 95.1 1.8% 

City of Lancaster, PA 96.1 0.8% 

City of Wilkes-Barre, PA 91.6 5.3% 
County of York, PA 96.9 0.0% 

Lower Paxton Township, PA 97.2 -0.3% 

Muhlenberg Township, PA 99.1 -2.2% 

Penn Township, PA 96.9 0.0% 

Southwestern Regional Police 96.7 0.2% 

Spring Garden Township, PA 96.9 0.0% 

Springettsbury Township, PA 96.9 0.0% 

York Area Regional Police 96.9 0.0% 

Average 96.8 0.14% 

The City hired Public Safety Solutions Inc. (PSSI) in 2009 to conduct a study of the City Fire 
Department. The City studied the recommendations and has implemented many of them. As a result 
of the study, the City has joined with North York to provide fire protection services for an annual fee 
of$75,000, has taken a piece offirefighting apparatus out of service and has made scheduling changes 
designed to reduce overtime. In 2002, the City employed 75 firefighters. In 2014 the City employs 58 
firefighters, a 23% reduction. 

Additionally, the City hired the Police Executive Research Forum of York Counts, a local volunteer 
strategic planning group, to study the potential to create a Metro York Police Department. The study 
included recommendations for individual departments to enhance efficiency. The study was 
completed in mid-20 12 and the recommendations are under review by the City Police Department. 
York Counts has taken over responsibility to promote regionalization of the Metro York police 
departments and has met with quite a bit of resistance from neighboring communities. 

In 2007, the City hired Riverside Consulting (now Evolution Benefits Consulting, EBC) to assist in 
developing a strategy to reduce the rate of increase in health care costs. After an in depth analysis of 
cost and usage trends and member demographics, EBC developed a new employee health care plan, a 
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true Preferred Provider Organization, that includes wellness programs and incentives. EBC assisted 
the City in doing a request for proposals to hire a new third party administrator. Resulting from that 
process was the retention of Capital Blue Cross for two 3-year terms from 2008-2010, and 2011-2013, 
as the City's Third Party Administrator (TPA). 

After an RFP process and consideration of three finalists, the City again retained Capital Blue Cross 
for the period 2014-2016. Hiring EBC as the City's TPA has given the City access to the claims 
processing experience and infrastructure and the contractual service and product discounts of a major 
health care insurer while retaining the significant cost savings of self-insurance. EBC also helped the 
City in the development of a pharmacy benefit program that included a three tier co-pay structure, 
mandatory generic usage, a step therapy program, and a direct contract with the pharmacy benefit 
administrator. These changes resulted in bigger discounts and rebates than were previously enjoyed. 
In 2014, the City moved to participate with a coalition of employers for our pharmacy benefit 
program and will realize substantial savings from the new contractual terms including higher rebates 
and lower prices. 

At this time, all of the employee groups are in the City's PPO plan that started in 2008. The FOP 
continues to be the only group that does not pay a premium for coverage. New contracts were 
negotiated with the AFSCME, Teamster, and IBEW bargaining units that took effect January I, 2013. 
The contracts provide for higher premiums, significant increases in co-pays, and modifications to plan 
structure, all of which are aimed at controlling costs for the City while at the same time providing 
world class health care to our employees, their families and our retirees. The City is currently 
reviewing plan offerings to identifY other cost saving measures for the new FOP contractive effective 
January I, 2015. 

During the 2014 budget season, the City continued the commitment to increased efficiency through 
automation by contracting with McGladrey Consultants to upgrade the Microsoft Great Plains 
financial management system to Microsoft Dynamics AX II. This was a recommendation from the 
2011 PFM study referenced earlier and the City was awarded a $150,000 grant from the state of 
Pennsylvania for this project. Replacing a system acquired in 1998, this system will be built on a 
Microsoft SQL Server database consolidating the general ledger, sewer & refuse, parking, and real 
estate tax into one central database. The platform will provide the necessary infrastructure for 
sustainable, continued growth as more department functions can be added at a later date. The 
Dynamics AX environment sets the foundation to interface with SharePoint and CRM. Which in the 
future, will provide City departments the efficiency necessary to streamline costs and exploit talents 
providing advanced support to field agents in Permits, Planning & Zoning performing inspections, 
Public Works department employees, Community Development through complaint tracking, Housing 
and Economic Development by having all available City residences, vendors and customers tied to 
addresses and cross referenced with search queries available by name, parcel identification number 
and other fields. 

Ultimately, this new financial system will increase revenue by improving collections above existing 
rates. CRM's ability to turn bits of data into useful information creates a stronger tax collector. The 
system is able to proactively turn information into educational opportunities, outreach and/or audits 
for non-compliance. Savings will also be experienced by the ability to print timely financial 
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statements in house. Budget decisions will be improved based on timely reporting of year to date 
revenues and expenses, cash flow projections and regular monthly/quarterly financial reporting to the 
Administration and Council. The system will also reduce or eliminate the City's current reliance on 
external contractors to produce annual financial statements. The system will also improve 
management's ability to make tough fiscal decisions mid-year and improve our ability to meet SEC 
bond filing continuing disclosure requirements to have the annual audit completed by June 301

h each 
year. 

The City has made significant strides over the past year in pursuit of the goals set by the 
Administration for the Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD). Through 
partnerships, creativity and community involvement DECD has been able to make strides in its efforts 
to build a sustainable local economy that has a positive impact on our residents in the form of jobs 
created, improved housing stock and an ever increasing standard of living for City residents. The 
department has also exceled in identifying and engaging in projects with objectives to stabilize 
neighborhoods that have suffered from disinvestment. Furthermore, through its ability to leverage 
City funds the department has been able make indelible impacts across the community. Some of these 
projects include: 

• Royal Square - The City has continued to support the efforts spearheaded by Royal Square 
Development Corporation in conjunction with the YWCA. This partnership includes 
submitting a funding request to the Commonwealth's Department of Community and 
Economic Development for Neighborhood Partnership Program (NPP) funding in the amount 
of $1,250,000. The equity funds will be derived from five tax credit investors that have a 
strong belief in the future impacts this project will have on the neighborhood and the City. In 
addition to this financing component the City, through its Redevelopment Authority, 
purchased five problematic properties in the area that will be ultimately renovated to a higher 
more productive use - including two bars located at 105-107 S. Duke Street and 117 East 
Princess Street. 

• Salem Square - The City in partnership with Salem Square Community Association and 
members of the faith based community continue to push forward with the redevelopment of 
Gus' Bar into residential and commercial spaces. The department secured grant funding from 
the Commonwealth's Department of Economic and Community Development and the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development to underwrite the costs to fully renovate the 
property in order to alleviate any financial burden to the city. Upon completion, this project is 
anticipated to provide a focal point of community efforts to abate crime and improve quality of 
life in the neighborhood. 

• Northeast Neighborhood Association - The City's Redevelopment Authority has continued 
its efforts to strategically acquire vacant and blighted properties in this neighborhood to spur 
investment from the private sector and further instill investor confidence. A new developer 
named "Think Loud Development" has made a significant investment in the neighborhood 
with the purchase of 210 Y ark Street, transforming a former printing facility into an adaptive 
reuse project of Class-A commercial office space. At full build out, it is anticipated that the 
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facility will house five businesses that will hire up to forty full time employees. Project such 
as this will continue to add stability to the community and serve to anchor the neighborhood in 
such a way that it will increase the surrounding values of the remaining property owners. 

• Northwest Triangle (NWT) -The City continues its push to create a market for investment 
into the "shovel ready" NWT redevelopment area. An agreement has been reached with 
CODO Development Group to develop 80-90 rental residential units on the formers Weaver's 
lot which would aid in attracting human capital to the city looking for live - work 
opportunities. Additionally, the development of Keystone Kidspace will transform the former 
Keystone Colorworks site into a family destination to complement the growing entertainment 
venues throughout downtown York. 

• City Revitalization Improvements Zone (CRIZ) - City officials along with the 
Commonwealth's Department of Economic and Community Development are working 
diligently together to obtain a CRIZ designation for the City of York. As part of these efforts, 
the City, in partnership with members of the York County Economic Alliance has identified 
130 acres of development opportunities in the City that could benefit from the 5:1 leveraging 
deal structure that could turn these areas from fallow sites into thriving employment centers. 

In summary, the City has taken many proactive steps to improve its financial health and put in place 
the structure necessary for future economic and human capital growth. While the challenges are great, 
the City is fortunate to have a community of business leaders, a strong community foundation and 
City leaders who see the incredible potential of the City if its financial challenges can be conquered. 
These disparate groups on agree on the need to dramatically reduce, not just stabilize, city real estate 
tax rates- both school district and municipal. Until this done, the success of the core urban center will 
continue to be limited. 

The antiquated tax structure of Pennsylvania continues to strangle all of its third class cities like York. 
Similar to these other urban areas, 37% of the real estate tax base value in the City is tax exempt. The 
exempt property includes county, state and federal real estate, hospitals, churches, colleges and social 
service agencies. Every one of these tax exempt entities serves a majority of clients, parishioners, or 
students who are from outside the City and even outside the state. The City taxpayers with very 
limited financial resources are subsidizing services for people who make almost no financial 
contributions to the City's revenue base. This dysfunctional system caused a combined city I school I 
county property tax rate for city homeowners of58.63 mils (5.86% of assessed value). This is a huge 
financial burden on a population which is disproportionate to other municipalities in the region. 

The costs of providing City services rise faster than the revenue that is necessary to pay for the 
services. The City's financial challenges remain rooted in the disjuncture of its revenue sources and 
expenditure obligations. General revenue is primarily generated from taxes: real estate, earned 
income, business privilege, mercantile, and municipal services taxes. The tax bases from which these 
revenues flow are highly local and based upon an antiquated concept of economic activity. Costs, on 
the other hand, are global: energy, materials, insurance, labor, and money are highly influenced by the 
global economy. 
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Ironically the financial challenges of the City grow more burdensome at the same time that many 
businesses in the City flourish. The non-city resident employees of these businesses flourish too: 
medical professionals, lawyers, bank executives, police officers, teachers, college professors, and 
others, deliver their earned income tax to their communities of residence, while the residents of the 
City pay for the public infrastructure supporting the economic activity of non-residents. 
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Primm:x Government 
Governmental Business-type Component 

Activities Activities Total Units Total 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,674,864 $ 2,878,697 $ 5,553,561 $ 1,107,808 $ 6,661,369 
Receivables, net of allowance 

for uncollectible accounts: 
Taxes 5,825,236 5,825,236 5,825,236 
AccoWlts 2,710,981 2,715,502 5,426,483 67,376 5,493,859 
Loans 3,743,593 3,743,593 1,056,988 4,800,581 
Interest 5,776 5,776 
Note 107,233 107,233 

Internal balances (4,074,650) 4,074,650 
Due from component unit 734,717 734,717 734,717 
Due from other govemments, net 

of allowance 4,488,668 1,629,788 6,118,456 1,732,931 7,851,387 
Inventory 9,780 9,780 9,780 
Prepaid expenses 25,708 30,790 56,498 962 57,460 
Restricted assels: 

Cash and ca.<;h equivalents 1,017,932 10,557,879 ll,575,811 1,624,850 13,200,661 
Investments, at fair value 2,297,887 2,297,887 2,297,887 

Lease rentals receivable 28,894,144 28,894,144 28,894,144 
Capital a-:;sets, less accumulated 

depreciation and amortization 53,340,399 88,518,301 141,858,700 8,609,864 150,468,564 
Prepaid debt insurance 570,313 570,313 570,313 

Total assets 70,487,448 142,177,731 212,665,179 14,313,788 226,978,967 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and other 

cun·ent liabilities 3,677,889 635,109 4,312,998 81,681 4,394,679 
Accrued liabilities 1,909,626 118,081 2,027,707 2,027,707 
Due to primary government 734,717 734,717 
Due to other govenm1ents 73,583 73,583 104,157 177,740 
Due to City of York pension 

trust funds 6,934,223 6,934,223 6,934,223 
Uneamed revenue 3,973,240 88,287 4,061,527 610,813 4,672,340 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 6,059,736 4,639,364 10,699,100 2,710,500 13,409,600 
Due in more than one year 67,066,935 54,757,513 121,824,448 7,474,500 129,298,948 

Total liabilities 89,695,232 60,238,354 149,933,586 11,716,368 161,649,954 



Primary Govenunent 
Govenunental Business-type Component 

Activities Activities Total Units Total 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 28,176,611 63,015,213 91,191,824 1,374,864 92,566,688 
Restricted for: 

Public works 379,564 379,564 379,564 
Community development and 

planning 86,041 86,041 86,041 
Workers' compensation 456,226 456,226 456,226 
Debt se1vice 581,869 7,063,618 7,645,487 21,672 7,667,159 
Revolving loan 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Construction 4,754,384 4,754,384 4,754,384 

Unrestricted (48,888,095) 7,106,162 (41,781,933) 200,884 (41,581,049) 

Total net position $ (19,207,784) $ 81,939,377 $ 62,731,593 $ 2,597,420 $ 65,329,013 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

Govenunental 
Activities 

649,634 
2,347,127 

(24,533,131) 
(463,771) 

( 4,683,546) 
(1,123,167) 

(220,930) 
(369,049) 

(3,985,679) 

(32,382,512) 

(32,382,512) 

20,008,775 
1,203,488 
2,853,337 
3,315,224 

312,708 
35,651 
12,900 

207,222 
1,961,601 

187,779 
2,580,542 

32,679,227 

296,715 
(19,504,499) 

(19,207,784) 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Chan es in Net Position 

Primary Govenunent 

$ 

$ 

Business-type 
Activities 

829,947 
(726,588) 
(424,987) 

42,287 

(279,341) 

(279,341) 

1,418,234 
(2,580,542) 

(1,162,308) 

(1,441,649) 
83 381,026 

81,939,377 

$ 

$ 

Total 

649,634 $ 
2,347,127 

(24,533,131) 
(463,771) 

(4,683,546) 
(1,123,167) 

(220,930) 
(369,049) 

(3,985,679) 

(32,382,512) 

829,947 
(726,588) 
(424,987) 

42,287 

(279,341) 

(32,661,853) 

20,008,775 
1,203,488 
2,853,337 
3,315,224 

312,708 
35,651 
12,900 

207,222 
1,961,601 

1,606,013 

31,516,919 

(1,144,934) 
63,876,527 

62,731,593 $ 

Component 
Units 

(56,503) 
(108,005) 

(164,508) 

3,500 
35,134 

38,634 

(125,874) 
2,723,294 

2,597,420 

$ 

$ 

Total 

649,634 
2,347,127 

(24,533,131) 
(463,771) 

( 4,683,546) 
(1,123,167) 

(220,930) 
(369,049) 

(3,985,679) 

(32,382,512) 

829,947 
(726,588) 
(424,987) 

42,287 

(279,341) 

(32,661,853) 

(56,503) 
(108,005) 

(164,508) 

20,008,775 
1,203,488 
2,853,337 
3,315,224 

312,708 
35,651 
12,900 

207,222 
1,961,601 

3,500 
1,641,147 

31,555,553 

(1,270,808) 
66,599,821 

65,329,013 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
BALANCESHEET-GOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2013 

Other Total 
General Debt Service Capital Govenm1ental Governmental 

Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 187,027 $ $ $ 754,564 $ 941,591 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 561,706 561,706 
Receivables: 

Loans (less allowance for doubtfi!l 
accounts of $33,000 in the General Fund and 
$513,260 in the Other Governmental Funds) 370,847 3,372,746 3,743,593 

Taxes (less allowance for doubtful 
accounts of$1,531,059 in the General 
Fund, $249,345 in the Debt Service Fund, 
and $124,754 in the Other Govenmtental 
Funds) 5,416,253 272,404 136,579 5,825,236 

Accounts (less allowance for doubtful accounts 
of$4,047,413 in the General Fund) 1,979,990 186,272 429,636 2,595,898 

Due from other funds 341,493 12,777 60,000 414,270 

Due from component units 734,717 734,717 

Due from other governments 4,488,668 4,488,668 

Total assets $ 9,030,327 $ 834,110 $ 4,687,717 $ 4,753,525 $ 19,305,679 

Liabilities, Defen·ed Inflows ofRcsou1·ccs, 
and Fund Balances (Deficits) 

Liabilities: 
Accotmts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,171,433 $ 2,896 458,124 $ 273,791 $ 1,906,244 

Accrued wages payable 1,724,764 41,556 1,766,320 

Due to other funds 6,481,699 3,182,859 1,300,693 10,965,251 

Due to other governments 73,583 73,583 

Unearned revenues 561,047 3,412,193 3,973,240 

Total liabilities 9,938,943 2,896 3,640,983 5,101,816 18,684,638 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Unavailable revenue- taxes 4,807,380 249,345 124,754 5,181,479 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Restricted for: 

Public works 379,564 379,564 

Community development 86,041 86,041 
Debt setvice 581,869 581,869 

Capital projects 1,046,734 1,046,734 

Unassigned (5,715,996) (938,650) (6,654,646) 

Total fund balances (deficits) (5,715,996) 581,869 1,046,734 (473,045) ( 4,560,438) 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and fund balances (deficits) $ 9,030,327 $ 834,110 $ 4,687,717 $ 4,753,525 $ 19,305,679 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Fund balances ~ total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position arc different because: 

Capital assets used in govcnunental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 
in the governmental funds. 

Govcnunental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Some of the City's taxes will be collected after year~end, 
but arc not available soon enough to pay for the current 
period's expenditures and, therefore, are reported as 
unavailable revenue in the funds. 

Long-tetm liabilities, including bonds payable, arc 
not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Bonds payable 
Notes payable 
Other post-employment liability 
Loans from other governmental entities 
Capitalized lease obligation 
Compensated absences 
Accrued interest payable 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge 
the costs of insurance services, human resource 
services, infmmation services, central services, 
and business administration services to individual 
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal 
service fund are included in govenunental activities 
in the statement of net position. 

$ 128,637,721 
(75,431,480) 

(43,913,599) 
(4,778,940) 

(16,855,915) 
(2,910,000) 
(2,749,974) 
(1,238,423) 

(124,400) 

2,862,923 

$ (4,560,438) 

53,206,241 

5,181,479 

(72,571 ,251) 

Internal service fund net position 
Adjustment related to enterprise funds (3,326, 738) ( 463,815) 

Net position of govenunental activities $ (19,207,784) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Other Total 
General Debt Service Capital Govenunental Govenunental 

Fw1d Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds 
Revenues: 

Taxes $ 23,039,253 $ 2,989,073 $ $ 1,215,474 $ 27,243,800 
Licenses and permits 1,702,577 1,702,577 
Fines and forfeits 1,650,787 1,650,787 
Grants and contributions 1,374,377 1,961,601 2,692,126 4,128,685 10,156,789 
Charges for services 8,440,547 147,712 714,530 9,302,789 
Loan repayments 108,986 108,986 
Interest 14,894 36,678 265 1,335 53,172 
Miscellaneous 212,693 155,096 367,789 

Total revenues 36,435,128 5,135,064 2,692,391 6,324,106 50,586,689 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 1,771, 795 5,996 197,219 149,107 2, 124,117 
Sanitation 3,027,744 3,027,744 
Public safety 27,994,840 26,914 28,021,754 
Highways and streets 687,982 573,346 1,261,328 
Public works 2,554,872 34,529 2,589,401 
Parks and recreation 1,468,337 1,468,337 
Community development and planning 2,232,993 1,462,271 3,695,264 
Other departments and programs 195,405 1,368,136 1,563,541 

Debt service: 
Principal retirements 27,391 4,585,000 412,255 306,976 5,331,622 
Interest 4,889 1,024,692 145,281 129,595 1,304,457 

Capital outlay 4,393,ll3 452,608 4,845,721 

Total expenditures 38,497,9ll 5,615,688 5,147,868 5,971,819 55,233,286 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (2,062, 783) (480,624) (2,455,477) 352,287 ( 4,646,597) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 2,654,767 1,199,537 799,875 90,458 4,744,637 
Transfers out (1,359,351) (620,596) (184,148) (2,164,095) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,295,416 578,941 799,875 (93,690) 2,580,542 

Net change in ftmd balances (deficits) (767,367) 98,317 (1,655,602) 258,597 (2,066,055) 

Fund balances (deficits)~ beghming of year ( 4,948,629) 483,552 2,702,336 (731,642) (2,494,383) 

Fund balances (deficits)- end of year $ (5,715,996) $ 581,869 $ 1,046,734 $ (473,045) $ ( 4,560,438) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
RECONCIL!A TION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO 
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in tl1e statement 
of activities arc different because: 

Net change in fund balances (deficits) - total governmental funds 

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlays 
Depreciation expense 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not 
provide current financial resources are not reported 
as revenues in the fWlds. 

The issuance of long-term debt (i.e., bonds, leases) 
provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of principal oflong-tenn 
debt consumes the ctmcnt financial resources of 
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net position. 

Amortization of prepaid debt insurance 
Principal repayments 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities when incuncd 
do not require the use of current financial resources when paid in 
governmental funds and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Change in compensated absences 
Change in accrued interest 
Other post-employment liability 
Amortization of bond discounts 

Internal service funds are used by management to 
charge the costs of insurance services, human 
resource services, infonnation services, CCiltral 
services, and business administration services to 
individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities 
of the internal service fund is reported within 
governmental activities. 

Internal service fund change in net position 
Adjustment related to enterprise funds 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

$ 4,985,642 
(3,651,651) 

(380,984) 
5,331,622 

(58,022) 
4,177 

(2,575,291) 
(2,282,069) 

908,594 
(367,849) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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$ (2,066,055) 

1,333,991 

448,601 

4,950,638 

(4,911,205) 

540,745 

$ 296,715 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 3 I, 2013 

Business·iype Activities· Enterprise Fwtds 

Other IntcnJal 
lntennuoicipal Sewer Icc Rink Enterprise Set vice 
Sewer Fund Fw1d Fwtd F~"' Total F~d 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Caslt and cash equivalents s 2,198,055 $ 680,642 $ $ $ 2,878,697 $ 1,733,273 
Receivables: 

Lease rentals, cwient 1,707,324 1,707,324 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for 
doubtful accowl!s of$6,497,538) 338,554 2,283,504 50,254 43,190 2,715,502 115,083 

Inventozy 9,780 9,780 
Prepaid expenses 30,790 30,790 25,708 
Due from oilier govcnunents 1,629,788 1,629,788 
Due fi:om other fwHls 2 040 320 2,040 320 3394147 

Total cunent assets 4 166 397 6 7!1 790 90 824 43 190 ll012201 5 268 211 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 8,729,526 1,828,353 10,557,879 456,226 
Investments 2 297 887 2,297,887 

Total restricted assets 11027413 I 828 353 12.855 766 456 226 

Noncurrent assets: 
Lease rentals receivable, long·tcnn 27,186,820 27,186,820 
Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation 84,994,64-1 3,511,205 12,452 88,518,301 134,158 
Prepaid debt inswance 570313 570313 

Total nonculTent assets 112751777 3511205 12 452 116 275,434 134 158 

Total assets 4 166 397 130 490 980 3 602 029 I 883 995 140,143,401 5,858,595 

Liabilities 
Current Jiabdihes: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 376,786 93,964 155,155 9,204 635,109 1,771,645 
Accrued wages payable 58,335 12,257 8,797 2,656 82,045 18,906 
Accrued interest 36,036 36,036 
Due to other funds 428,393 652,727 211,288 1,292,408 525,301 
Unearned revenue 88 287 88,287 

Total current liabilities 863 514 106 221 941 002 223 148 2.133.885 2315852 

Current liabilities payable from 
restricted assets: 

Current portion of capitalized lease 
obligations 110,466 17,055 127,521 34,582 

CtUTcnt portion of bonds and notes payable 4 096 843 415000 4 511,843 170901 

Total cwTent liabilities payable 
from rcsh·icted resources 4 207 309 432 055 4,639,364 205 483 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Accrued compensated absences 73,653 31,075 5,097 !09,825 80,239 
Other post-employment liability 303,199 67,742 20,002 390,943 137,923 
Capitalized lease obligations 178,785 192,621 371,406 74,444 
Bonds and notes outstanding 50,260 339 3 625 000 53,885,339 !81 731 

Total noncwTcnt liabilities 376 852 so 537 941 3 817 621 25 099 54 757,5 (3 474 337 

Total liabilities l 240,366 54 851 471 5 190 678 248 247 61,530 762 2 995 672 

Net Position 
Net mvestment llt capLtal asscl~ 63,741,232 (738,471) 12,452 63,015,213 
Restricted: 

Debt service 7,063,618 7,063,618 
Construction 2,926,031 1,828,353 4,754,384 
Workers' compensation 456,226 

Unrestricted 4.834 659 (850:178} (205,057l 3,779,424 2,406,697 

Total net position $ 2 926 031 $ 75 639 509 $ !11588 649} $ I 635 748 $ 78 612 639 ' 2 862 923 

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of intemal service fund activities related to enterprise funds 3 326,738 

Net position of business-type activities $ 81939,377 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN 
NET POSITION- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20!3 

Busincss~txpc Activities- Enterprise Fw1<Js 

Other Internal 
Intennunicipal Sewer lee Rink Enterprise Service 
Sewer Fund F~d Fund F~d< Total Fund 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services ' 7,183,789 ' 9,237,785 $ 588,722 ' 59,563 ' 17,069,859 ' !3,056,424 
Rental income 463,442 2,790 466,232 
Revenue from other local govcm.mcnts 85,227 85,227 
Miscellaneous income 9 119 54191 3 266 66 576 

Total operating revenues 7 192 908 9,291 976 I 055430 147 580 17,687 894 13 056,424 

Operating expenses; 
Personnel setvices 2,030,472 458,049 346,495 101,712 2,936,728 1,481,328 
Utilities 671,387 175,860 847,247 
Treatment costs 2,020,57& 2,020,578 
Contractual services 852,492 157,511 29,181 1,039,184 
Pmfessional services 129,789 215,178 57,600 7,706 410,273 679,069 
Materials and supplies 381,394 56,844 198,147 13,263 649,648 262,321 
Sludge 490,021 490,021 
Administrative 653,541 774,594 141,17l 34,927 1,604,233 347,766 
Health insurance claims 6,926,351 
Insurance premiums 30,265 30,265 965,241 
Workers' compensation insurauce 670,224 
Depreciation 3,888,951 268,790 4,157,741 14,907 
Miscellaneous 1 498 746 345 092 213 4 857 I 848,908 784 035 

Total operating expenses 6 707 842 7 916 797 1,247 722 162 465 16 034 826 12 131,242 

Operating income (loss) 485 066 I 375 179 ~1921292} (141885} I 653,068 925,182 

Nonoperating revenue (expenses): 
Grants 54,000 54,000 
Investment income 1,699 1,414,953 99 1,483 1,418,234 5,758 
Contributions 3,172 3,172 
Sptingettsbury capacity sale 831,000 831,000 
Interest expense (2,955,735) (232,695) (3.188,430) (22 346) 

Total nonoperating revenue 
(expenses) 1,699 (709,782) (232,596) 58 655 (882,024) (16,5!18) 

Change in net position befOre transfers 486., 765 665,397 (424,888) 43,770 771,044 908,594 

Transfers in 412,7% 496,6&4 909,480 
Transfers out (412,796) (3,077,226) (3A90,022) 

Change in net position 73,969 (1,999,033) 71,796 43,770 (1,809,498) 908,594 

Net position- begimling of year 2,852 062 77 638 542 {1,660,445} 1,591 978 1,954 329 

Net position- end ofycru: $ 2 926 031 $ 75,639 509 $ {11588,649} $ I 635,748 $ 2 862,923 

Adjustment to reflect the cousolidation of internal service fund activities 
related to entetprise funds 367 849 

Change in net position ofbnsiness-type activities $ {1,441,649) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Business-type Activities~ Enterprise Funds 

Other Internal. 
Intcrmunicipal Sewer Ice Rink Enterprise Service 

Sewer Fund Fund Fund Fw1ds Total FMd 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers and users $ 7,303,689 $ 9,221,204 $ 1,043,454 $ 220,298 $ 17,788,645 $ 13,064,447 
Payments to suppliers (4,430,469) (4,566,135) (548,666) (21,460) (9,566,730) (11,256,058) 
Payments to employees (1,991!838~ (446!933~ {3441429} !98 539} {2,881,739) pl455,573) 

Net cash provided by 
operating activities 881 382 4 208 136 ISO 359 100 299 5,340 176 352 816 

Cash flows from noncapital financing 
activities: 

Transfers iu 412,796 496,684 909,480 
Transfers out (412,796) (3,077,226) (3,490,022) 
Springcttsbucy capacity sale 831 000 831 000 

Net cash provided by (used in} 
noncapital financing activities !4121796} (11833,430) 496 684 (11749,542) 

Cash flows frmn capital and related 
fmru1cing activities: 

Capital outlays (354,578) (354,578) 
Grants ru1d contributions 3,172 3,172 
Principal receipts on lease rentals 
receivable 2,960,685 2,960,685 

P1·incipal payments on bonds and notes (4,015,382) (395,000) (4,4to,382) (160,633) 
P1incipal payments on capital lease (111,266) (16,320) (127,586) (40,039) 
Interest paid (1,772,757) (235 822} [2,008,579) {32,614} 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital 
and related financing activities p,293,298} {647 142} 3 172 p,937,268) {233,286} 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of investment securi tics (568,102) (568,102) 
Investment iiiC(IffiC 1,699 12 617 99 I 483 15,898 5,758 

Net cash provided by (used i11) 
investing activities I 699 (555,485) 99 I 483 (552,204) 5 758 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
ca~h equivalents 470,285 (1,474,077) 104,954 (898,838) 125,288 

Cash and cash equivalents 
- beginni.J1g of year 1 727 770 10 884 245 I 723 399 14335414 2,064 211 

Cash and casb equivalents- end of year $ 2 198 055 $ 9410168 $ $ I 828,353 $ 13,436,576 $ 2,189,499 

Reconciliation of operating income 
(loss) to net cas\1 provided by 
operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ 485,066 $ 1,375,179 $ (192,292) $ (14,885) $ 1,653,068 $ 925,182 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
i1tcome (loss) to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

Depreciation 3,888,951 268,790 4,157,741 14,907 
Grants 54,000 54,000 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable (157,658) (111,813) (5,563) 18,718 (256,316) 8,023 
Inventory (1,497) (1,497) 
Prepaid expenses 5,196 5,196 2,495 
Due from otl1er govenuncnts 268,439 41,041 309,480 
Due from other fmtds (900,515) (900,515) (1,056,503) 

Increase (decrea~;e) in: 
Accounts payable ru1d accrued expenses (16,413) (95,823) 7,484 7,486 (97,266) 747,185 
Accmed wages payable 16,479 2,251 2,066 423 21,219 4,597 
Other post-employment liability 29,837 8,023 1,615 39,475 11,343 
Accmed compensated absences (7,682) 842 1,135 (5,705) 9,815 
Uneamed revenue (6,413) {6,413) 
Due to other funds 263 314 72588 31 807 367,709 !Jl4,228) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 881 382 $ 4 208 136 $ 150 359 $ 100 299 $ 5,340,176 $ 352,816 

Noncash Capital Financing and Related Financing 
Activities: 

Proceeds fi·om capital1case $ $ $ $ $ $ 149,065 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION- FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2013 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments, at fair value 
Accounts receivable 
Due from City of York 

Total assets 

Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Total liabilities 

Net Position 

Restricted for pension benefits 

$ 

$ 

Pension 
Trust 
Funds 

95,900,443 

6,934,223 

102,834,666 

102,834,666 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

Agency 
Funds 

692,008 

6,529 

698,537 

698,537 

698,537 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1, 2013 

Additions: 
Contributions 

Employee contributions 
Employer contributions 

Total contributions 

Investment income: 
Interest and dividend income 
Net appreciation of investments 

Less investment expense 

Net investment income 

Total additions 

Deductions: 
Benefit payments 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Net position restricted for pension benefits, 
beginning of year 

Net position restricted for pension benefits, 
end of year 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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$ 668,!50 
5,708,552 

6,376,702 

1,796,677 
11,453,349 

13,250,026 

(34 1,509) 

12,908,517 

19,285,219 

7,054,409 

7,054,409 

12,230,810 

90,603,856 

$ 102,834,666 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION- COMPONENT UNITS 
DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Redevelopment General 
Authorit~ Authorit~ Total 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,049,541 $ 58,267 $ 1,107,808 
Due from other governments (net of allowance of 

$644,643 and zero) 1,732,931 1,732,931 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,624,850 1,624,850 
Accounts receivable 65,640 1,736 67,376 
Accrued interest 5,776 5,776 
Prepaid expenses 962 962 

Total cun·ent assets 2,849,074 1,690,629 4,539,703 

NoncutTent assets: 
Loans receivable, net of allowance 1,056,988 1,056,988 
Note receivable 107,233 107,233 
Capital assets (net of accumulated 

depreciation of$1,551,033 and 
$8,332,591) 1,974,032 6,635,832 8,609,864 

Total noncmTent assets 3,031,020 6, 743,065 9,774,085 

Total assets 5,880,094 8,433,694 14,313,788 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 25,670 56,011 81,681 
Due to primary govemmcnt 2,000 732,717 734,717 
Due to other governments 104,157 104,157 
Unearned revenues 42,000 568,813 610,813 
Cw-rent portion of loan payable 2,450,000 2,450,000 
Current portion of bonds payable 130,000 130,000 
Current portion of note payable 130,500 130,500 

Total current liabilities 2,753,827 1,488,041 4,241,868 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Bonds payable 2,595,000 2,595,000 
Note payable 500,000 4,379,500 4,879,500 

Totalnoncmrent liabilities 3,095,000 4,379,500 7,474,500 

Total liabilities 5,848,827 5,867,541 11,716,368 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets (750,968) 2,125,832 1,374,864 
Restricted: 

Debt service 21,672 21,672 
Revolving loan 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Unrestricted (239,437) 440,321 200,884 

Total net position $ 31,267 $ 2,566,153 $ 2,597,420 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION- COMPONENT UNITS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Pro~am Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and Redevelopment 
ExEenses Services Contributions Authority 

Redevelopment Authority $ 1,226,954 $ 1,085,449 $ 85,002 $ (56,503) 
General Authority 1,847,075 1,739,07~ -----

Total component units $ 3,074,029 $ 2,824,519 $ 85,002_ (56,503) 

General revenues: 
Miscellaneous revenue 3,500 
Unrestricted investment earnings 30,866 

Total general revenues 34,366 

Change in net position (22,137) 

Net position- beginning of year 53,404 

Net position- end of year $ 31,267 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

General 
Authority Total 

$ $ (56,503) 
(108,005) (108,005) 

(108,005) (164,508) 

3,500 
4,268 35,134 

4,268 38,634 

(103,737) (125,874) 

2,669,890 2,723,294 

$ 2,566,153 $ 2,597,420 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of York, Pennsylvania (City), was founded in 1741 and chartered as a city in 1787. 
The City is a third class city operating under the Third Class City/Optional Charter Law of 
Pennsylvania. The City's core services are public works, housing programs, recreation, 
economic development, public safety, health and environmental services, sewer maintenance, 
and wastewater treatment. 

The accounting policies of the City conform with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units, except as noted 
below. The following is a summary of the more significant policies: 

Reporting Entity 

The criteria used by the City to evaluate the possible inclusion of related entities (Authorities, 
Boards, Councils, etc.) within its reporting entity are financial accountability and the nature 
and significance of the relationship. In determining financial accountability in a given case, 
the City reviews the applicability of the following criteria. 

The City is financially accountable for: 

• Organizations that make up the legal City entity. 
• Legally separate organizations if City officials appoint a voting majority of the 

organization's governing body and the City is able to impose its will on the 
organization or if there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens, on the City as defined below. 

Impose its Will- Ifthe City can significantly influence the programs, projects, 
or activities of, or the level of services performed or provided by, the 
organization. 
Financial Benefit or Burden - Exists if the City (I) is entitled to the 
organization's resources, or (2) is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed 
the obligation to finance the deficits of, or provide support to, the organization, 
or (3) is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization. 

• Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City. Fiscal dependency is 
established if the organization is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, or set rates or 
charges, or issue bonded debt without approval by the City. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, the reporting entity has been defined to include all the fund 
types for which the City is financially accountable and entities with which there is a significant 
relationship. Specific information on the nature of the various component units and a 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAREND ED DECEMBER31, 2013 

description of how the aforementioned criteria have been considered in determining whether to 
include such units in the City's financial statements are provided in the following paragraphs. 

Blended Component Unit 

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the 
primary government's (the City's) operations and so data from these units are combined with 
data of the City. The component unit which meets these criteria is the City of York Sewer 
Authority (Sewer Authority). 

The Sewer Authority was formed in 1950 under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 for 
the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, and leasing the sewer systems and sewer 
treatment works to the City. The five-member board is nominated by the Mayor and 
appointed by City Council (Council). The Sewer Authority's only financial transactions are 
the financing and maintaining of the City's sewer system. The Sewer Authority's financial 
statements are blended with the City's sewer activity and are accounted for as the Sewer Fund, 
an Enterprise Fund in the City's basic financial statements. Separately published financial 
statements of the Sewer Authority are available for public inspection in the City's Accounting 
Office. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Component units which are not blended as part of the primary government are discretely 
presented, which entails reporting component unit financial data in a column separate from the 
financial data of the primary government. The component units which meet these criteria are 
the City of York General Authority (General Authority) and the Redevelopment Authority of 
the City of York (Redevelopment Authority). 

The General Authority was formed in 1995 under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 
(Act) for all of the purposes authorized under the Act, without limitation, except for approval 
by the City of certain projects to be undertaken by the General Authority as specified in its 
Articles of Incorporation. The General Authority is governed by a seven-member board, all of 
whom are appointed by Council. The General Authority's primary operations to date have 
been to operate and maintain a municipal parking system and issue conduit debt. The City 
expressly reserves the right which exists under the Act to approve any plan of the General 
Authority as to making business improvements or providing administrative services, as those 
are defined in the Act. The General Authority issued debt on January I, 1996 for the purpose 
of purchasing the City's parking system. The debt was subsequently refunded and replaced by 
a note payable to the City. The General Authority publishes separate financial statements, 
which are available in the City's Accounting Office. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

The Redevelopment Authority was formed in 1950 under the Pennsylvania Urban 
Redevelopment Law, Act of 1945 (Public Law - 991, as amended). A five-member board 
administers the Redevelopment Authority, all of whom are appointed by the City Mayor. The 
Redevelopment Authority strategically acquires underutilized, blighted, and vacant parcels 
throughout the City for the purpose of promoting residential, commercial, and industrial 
redevelopment projects in the municipality. The Redevelopment Authority, in January of 
2002, issued debt for the purpose of constructing the Susquehanna Commerce Center Parking 
Garage. The Redevelopment Authority publishes separate financial statements, which are 
available in the City's Accounting Office. 

Related Organization 

Council is also responsible for appointing the members of the Housing Authority of the City of 
York, but the City's accountability for this organization does not extend beyond making such 
appointments. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement 
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government 
and its component units. For tbe most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed 
from these statements. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely 
significantly on fees and charges to external parties for support. Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the 
primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
pension trust fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been mel 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they 
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities 
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. The City considers real estate 
taxes, earned income taxes, mercantile taxes, franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenue, 
departmental earnings, and investment income as meeting the available criteria. All other 
governmental fund revenues are recorded as cash is received because they are generally not 
measurable until actually received. In determining when to recognize intergovernmental 
revenues (grants and entitlements), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual 
programs are used as guidance. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, principal and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due. 
Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as expenditures it1 the year when the items 
are purchased. Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences, employer pension 
contributions, and other post-employment benefits are reported to the extent that they mature 
each period. 

Unavailable revenue is recorded for governmental fund receivables that are not both 
measurable and available. Unavailable revenue consists of real estate taxes, earned income 
taxes, and mercantile taxes. Collections of real estate taxes and earned income taxes are 
recognized as revenue in the year in which they are measurable and available. 

Inflows that do not yet meet the criteria for revenue recognition, such as grant monies received 
prior to the incurrence of qualifYing expenditures, are recorded as unearned revenue for both 
the government-wide and the governmental fund financial statements. For the General 
Authority, parking fees are recognized in the period when such revenues pertain. Any amounts 
collected in advance of such periods are reflected in the statement of net position as unearned 
revenue. 
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The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used for all 
financial resources except those accounted for in another fund. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

Capital Projects Fund- The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the proceeds of debt 
issuances restricted for the acquisition and construction of capital facilities and other capital 
assets (excluding capital related costs financed by proprietary and fiduciary funds). 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

lntermunicipal Sewer Fund - The Intennunicipal Sewer Fund accounts for revenues and 
expenses associated with the Greater York Area Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Sewer Fund- The Sewer Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses associated with 
providing sanitary sewer services to City residents. The principal revenue source for this fund 
is user fees collected from City property owners. 

Ice Rink Fund - The Ice Rink Fund is used to account for revenues and expenses associated 
with the operation of these facilities. 

In addition, the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Fund- The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of 
insurance services, human resource services, information services, central services, and 
business administration services provided to the other funds of the City on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

Pension Trust Funds - Account for the accumulation of resources for pension benefit 
payments and the withdrawals of qualified distributions for members of the City police force, 
City firefighters, City officers, and employees. The City sponsors and administers these plans, 
which are defined benefit plans covering substantially all employees. 

Agency Funds - Account for situations where the City's role is purely custodial in nature 
(assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of operations. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government­
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the enterprise 
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funds and other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales 
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to 
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments (including restricted 
assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash 
equivalents. 

Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

Cash and investments in the Debt Service Fund and the Sewer Fund that are in bond trust 
funds are restricted to the purposes set forth by the bonds. 

Cash and investments in the Sewer Transportation Fund, which is included in other enterprise 
funds, that are surcharges imposed on municipalities connected to the City's system are 
restricted for future upgrades to the system. 

Cash and investments in the Internal Services Fund that are reserved for workers' 
compensation claims are restricted to the purposes set forth in the City's workers' 
compensation insurance binder. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value. 
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The City's policy is to provide an allowance for loans, taxes, and accounts receivable based on 
past collection experience. The Redevelopment Authority has estimated the allowance for 
uncollectible amounts based upon currently known facts and circumstances. 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding 
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current 
portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of 
interfund loans). During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between 
individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are 
classified as "due to/from other funds" on the balance sheet. Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in 
the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, dams, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by 
the government as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000, individually or in the 
aggregate, and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not available. Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or 
materially extend lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated 
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and furniture 
Infrastructure 
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Because the m1sswn of the Redevelopment Authority is to acquire blighted residential, 
commercial, and former industrial properties for the City to land bank, rehabilitate, or 
strategically purchase for future redevelopment projects ranging from for sale low-to moderate 
income home buyers or market rate mixed use development projects, which it does at little or 
no profit, such purchases are expensed at the time of acquisition. 

Vested Compensated Absences 

Vested compensated absences represent vested portions of accumulated unpaid vacation, sick 
pay, and other employee benefit amounts. It is the City's policy to permit employees to 
accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation, sick pay, and other employee 
benefit amounts, which will be paid to employees upon separation from City service. All 
compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and 
pension trust fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in 
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee 
resignations and retirements. 

Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement 
of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as prepaid debt insurance costs, are 
amortized over the life of the related obligation using the effective interest method. Debt is 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Prepaid debt insurance costs are 
repOiied as assets and amortized over the term of the related obligation. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as prepaid debt insurance costs, during the current period. The face amount 
of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing uses. Prepaid debt insurance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Accretion of Interest 

Discounts on principal-only treasury strip investments are accreted over the lives of the 
investments as an adjustment to yield using the effective interest method. Discounts on the 
zero-coupon Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 1990, Federally Taxable General 
Obligation Bonds- Series A of 1995, General Obligation Bonds- Series B of 1998, and 
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General Obligation Refunding Notes - Series D of 1998 are accreted over the life of the 
respective bonds using the effective interest method. 

Fund Equity and Net Position 

In the government-wide financial statements, net position IS classified in the following 
categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets, including 
infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the 
outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of these assets reduce this category. 

Restricted Net Position - This category presents external restrictions imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and 
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents the net position of the City, 
which is not restricted for any project or other purpose. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in categories based on 
the level of constraint placed upon the funds. These levels are as follows: 

Restricted Fund Balance - This category represents funds that are limited in use due 
to constraints on purpose and circumstances of spending that are legally enforceable by 
outside parties. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This category represents all other funds not otherwise 
defined. 

The City's policy is to use funds in the order of the most restrictive to the least restrictive. 

Self-insurance 

The City is primarily self-insured for health insurance. Various governmental funds and the 
proprietary funds are assessed charges based on historical loss experience with premiums 
being treated as quasi-external transactions. The City funds loss claims when incurred based 
upon the evaluation of an independent third-party administrator, together with claims incurred 
but not reported. The Internal Services Fund accounts for the self-insurance program. The 
City accrues claims incurred but not paid at year-end, taking into consideration claims 
incurred but not reported. 
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Nonrecourse Debt Issues 

The City (through the General Authority and the Redevelopment Authority) participates in 
various bond issues for which it has limited liability. Acting solely in an agency capacity, the 
City serves as a financing conduit, bringing the ultimate borrower and the ultimate lender 
together to do business. Although the City is a party to the trust indenture with the trustee, the 
agreements are structured such that there is no recourse against the City in the case of default. 
As such, the corresponding debt is not reflected on the City's statement of net position. The 
amount of nonrecourse debt issues for the Redevelopment Authority is unavailable at 
December 31, 2013. The amount of nonrecourse debt issues for the General Authority is 
$6,480,000 at December 31, 2013. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resources and disclosure of contingent assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at 
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 

The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities. " This Statement reclassifies certain items that were reported as assets and 
liabilities as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. As a result of 
this statement, reclassifications have been made. Under GASB Statement No. 65, debt 
issuance costs, excluding debt insurance, are fully expensed in the year of issuance. 

Pending Pronouncements 

In June 2012, the GASB has issued Statements No. 67 and No. 68, "Financial Reporting for 
Pension Plans," and "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. " In addition, in 
November 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 71, "Pension Transition for Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. " The objective of these Statements is to revise 
and establish reporting requirements for most governments that provide their employees with 
pension benefits. The provisions of these Statements are effective for the City's December 31, 
20 14 and 2015 financial statements. 
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In April2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 70, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees." The objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by governments that extend and receive nonexchange 
financial guarantees. The provisions of this Statement are effective for the City's December 
31, 2014 financial statements. 

The effect of implementation of these Statements has not yet been determined. 

2. BUDGETARY PROCEDURES AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

1. During August, the vanous departments and agencies of the City prepare their 
individual budgets for the ensuing calendar year. These individual budgets are 
submitted to the Business Administration Office (Administration) and include 
information on the year-to-date expenditures, projected expenditures for the remainder 
of the current year, and the next year's budget. 

2. Administration consolidates all departmental and agency budgets into a comprehensive 
preliminary budget for the entire City. The preliminary budget details both proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 

3. Each director meets with Administration as considered necessary to review his/her 
individual budgets as set forth in the preliminary City budget in the beginning of 
October. 

4. The Mayor holds hearings pursuant to the Third Class City Code and the Consolidated 
Ordinances of the City. Each department head is required to appear before the Mayor 
in a public hearing for the budget request. 

5. The Administration finalizes the budget and presents it to Council by the second 
meeting in November. 

6. In considering the budget, Council has the authority to reduce any line item by a vote 
of at least three members. In addition, Council may increase or add a line item to a 
budget by a vote of four members. 

7. The proposed budget ordinance must be available for public inspection in the Office of 
the City Clerk between the first and second readings. 
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8. Prior to December 31, Council adopts the final budget by enacting an appropriate 
ordinance. 

The Business Administrator has the authority to approve the transfer of unexpended funds 
between accounts except in the following instances: 

l. Transfers of more than 5% of an appropriation item within that fund. 

2. Transfers of more than 5% of a department's appropriated budget in that fund. 

In those instances and when additional unappropriated funds are needed, Council's approval is 
required. Council has approved all expenditures in excess of the original budget as a result of 
the adoption of the subsequent year's budget document. 

The following fund types and funds have legally adopted annual budgets: 

1. General Fund. 

2. Special Revenue Funds as follows: Recreation Fund, State Liquid Fuels Tax, 
Community Development Block Grant Fund, and the State Health Fund. 

3. 1995, 1998,2001,2002, and 2011 Debt Service Funds. 

4. Capital Projects Fund. 

5. All proprietary funds. 

3. FUND DEFICITS/DEFICIT NET POSITION 

As of December 31, 2013, six funds each had a deficit fund balance or net position. The 
City's management has addressed this situation and has prepared the following action plan to 
eliminate these deficits in a timely manner: 

General Fund- The fund deficit, at December 31, 2013, is $5,715,996. As a result of 
stagnant revenues due to the antiquated tax structure, national economic recession, 
unearned revenues from unpaid invoices, and State budget cuts, the City has been 
evaluating the revenue and expenditure history and the operations structure of the City 
to develop a long-term strategy for deficit reduction. Potential strategies include rate 
increases for taxes, fees and fines, workforce reduction, and workforce consolidation. 
In the short-term, the City has closely monitored cash flow projections, operational 
expenditures, and is allowing the work force to shrink through attrition. For 2011, the 
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City raised tax rates by more than II% and raised sewer rates by a similar proportion. 
The real estate tax rate for 2012 was raised by 17.2%. The City has undertaken three 
studies of General Fund Departments: A regional study of the Police Department, the 
Fire Department and the non-Police General Fund Departments have been 
completed. The Fire Department Study was completed by Public Safety Solutions, Inc. 
As a result of that study, the City has reduced staff, closed a fire station, and taken a 
piece of apparatus out of service. Regionalization efforts have yielded little success as 
they have been met with resistance by surrounding municipalities. In 2014, the 
property inspection positions were eliminated and all rental property licensing and 
inspection duties were consolidated with the Permits, Planning and Zoning department. 
The City commissioned a study by Public Financial Management in 2010. The study 
was completed and delivered to the City in mid-October 20 II. The City reviewed the 
study and has implemented many of the recommendations including raising the parking 
tax rate to 15%, enforcing the admissions tax ordinance, restructuring of the employee 
health insurance plans, developing an information technology improvement plan, 
completing a comprehensive compensation comparability study, and downsizing the 
health and housing departments in response to reduced CDBG funding. Current efforts 
include raising the earned income tax rate by 25% and implementing a non-resident 
earned income tax. 

Recreation Fund- The fund deficit, which is included in other governmental funds at 
December 31, 2013, of $353,383, is financed by loans from the General Fund as a 
result of revenue falling short of the budget. The City adopted a .25 mill tax increase in 
20 II and has dedicated the revenue from that levy to reduce the deficit in the 
Recreation Fund. The current balance is down 47% from the $671,476 balance at 
December 31, 20 12. 

State Liquid Fuels Tax Fund - The fund deficit, which is included in other 
governmental funds at December 31, 2013, of $6,556, is financed by loans from the 
General Fund as a result of revenue falling short of the budget. This deficit will be 
eliminated by expending less limn that fund than the revenue that is received in 
subsequent years. The current balance is down 90% from the $67,639 balance at 
December 31,2012. 

State Grant Health Funds - The fund deficit, which is included in other governmental 
funds at December 31,2013, of$578,711, is financed by loans from the General Fund 
as a result of revenue falling short of the budget. The budget was based on state 
communications about the amount of the grant to be received, but the actual received 
was less than the original communication. The deficit will be eliminated by expending 
less than the revenue received in that fund in future budgets. 
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Ice Rink Fund- The fund deficit, at December 31, 2013, of$1,588,649, is a result of 
assuming the capital assets and debt of the York Recreation Corporation and 
continuing losses. Although the ice rink has generated adequate revenue to pay the 
operating expenses and to make a contribution to the debt service, it has not generated 
adequate revenue to cover the full debt service. To assist in reducing the deficit, in 
2014, the City replaced the private firm managing the daily operations of the rink. The 
new firm has experienced comparable success managing a local minor league baseball 
team and has pledged their own capital investment into the rink. 

White Rose Cable TV Fund - The fund deficit, which is included in other enterprise 
funds at December 31,2013, of$220,713, is financed by loans from the General Fund 
as a result of revenue falling short of budget. Efforts are underway to establish an 
independent funding source for this fund. In 2011, a single benefactor donated $48,000 
to keep the White Rose Cable TV on the air. When an independent source of funding is 
established, the deficit will be eliminated. 

During 2013, the City overspent available cash in several of its funds, resulting in large cash 
deficits. Some of these overdrafts have been carried from prior years. The City's Internal 
Services Fund and Sewer Fund had sufficient funds to cover the cash overdrafts. 

Early Intervention Program 

In 2005, the City participated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's (Commonwealth) Early 
Intervention Program (EIP). The EIP was established by the Commonwealth, and 
administered by the Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED), to assist 
municipalities struggling lo meet financial obligations to conduct an in-depth historical 
financial analysis and prepare a five-year financial forecast. 

The City's EIP report projected that if no changes were made, by 2010 the City would be 
confronted by annual budget deficits in excess of $4.9 million. The report includes a list of 
options to increase revenue and decrease lhe rate of growth in expenses. If all of the options 
listed were implemented and the projections included in the report were realized, the annual 
budgetary deficits would be tenuously balanced through 2009 and would fall out of balance 
again in 2010. 

The City has implemented many of the options described in the report but suffered like others 
through the Great Recession of 2008. Although the changes did not eliminate the projected 
deficits, the downturn was significantly reduced. Nevertheless, the fiscal cliff still looms as 
the rise in the minimum municipal annual obligation to the pension fund and other scheduled 
cost increases are fixed for 2015. 
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The City received a grant from DCED in 2010 to update the EIP report. Subsequently, the City 
partnered with the York County Community Foundation for a study by the Police Executive 
Research Fellowship on the City and regional police departments and the possible creation of 
a regional department. Also, the City retained Public Safety Solutions, Inc. for a 
comprehensive study of the Department of Fire-Rescue Services and the City retained Public 
Financial Management (PFM) to study and report on all other aspects of the City government. 

The Fire Department Study was delivered in the beginning of 2011. As a result of that study, 
the City closed a station and took a piece of apparatus out of service. However, staff 
reductions have been offset by increased overtime costs. The PFM report was delivered in 
mid-October 2011. In 2014, the property inspection positions were eliminated and all rental 
property licensing and inspection duties were consolidated with the Permits, Planning and 
Zoning department. The Police Study focused on opportunities for the creation of a metro 
York police department and potential improvements and opportunities for cooperation 
amongst various departments in the region. As part of the improvement efforts and to seek 
accreditation, the City received a RACP grant from the State to renovate the police station. 
Obtaining this certification will decrease the City's liability insurance costs and 
simultaneously improve law enforcement. York Counts, a grassroots strategic planning 
organization managed by the York Community Foundation, has taken on the responsibility to 
promote regionalization of the metro York area police departments. York Counts funded the 
local match for the police study. Regionalization efforts have yielded little success to date. 

4. PROPERTY TAXES 

The City is permitted by the Third Class City Code of the Commonwealth levy property taxes 
up to 25 mills on every dollar of adjusted assessed valuation for general purposes, exclusive of 
the requirements for the payment of interest and principal on funded debt. The current tax 
levy of the City is 20.37 mills including amounts for debt service and recreation. 

Based upon assessed valuations provided by the County of York, the City bills and collects its 
own real estate taxes. The schedule for real estate taxes levied for 2013 was as follows: 

February 15, 2013 
February 15- Aprill5, 2013 
Aprill6- June 17,2013 
June 18- December 31,2013 
January 1, 2014 

levy date 
2% discount period 

face payment period 
10% penalty period 

lien date 

By the first Monday in January of the year subsequent to levy, the City turns over all 
delinquent taxes to the County of York Tax Claim Bureau, which collects these taxes on 
behalf of the City. 
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5. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The deposit and investment policy of the City adheres to the Pennsylvania Third Class City 
Code and prudent business practices. City deposits must be held in insured, federally regulated 
banks or financial institutions and must be fully collateralized in accordance with state 
statutes. Except for investments in the pension trust funds, permissible investments include 
direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies; certificates of deposit 
issued by insured banks, bank and trust companies, and savings and loan associations; 
repurchase agreements with maturities not to exceed 30 days, secured by U.S. Government 
obligations with collateral to be delivered to a third-party custodian; shares of registered 
investment companies whose portfolios consist solely of government securities; general 
obligation bonds of any state, Pennsylvania subdivisions, or any of its agencies or 
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the issuing entity and having the highest 
rating of a recognized bond rating agency; and pooled funds of public agencies of the 
Commonwealth. The types of investments in the pension trust fund are not restricted. The 
policy also allows investment of funds received as a result of debt issuance in any security in 
which the Commonwealth may invest. Any investment authorized by 20 Pa. C.S. Ch. 73 
(relating to fiduciaries' investments) shall be an authorized investment for any pension fund. 

The City follows the practice of pooling funds (excluding the pension trust funds and any 
other fund which is legally or contractually required to be segregated) for short-term 
investment purposes. Interest earnings are allocated to funds based upon the average balance 
of funds invested in the pool over the previous six-month period. The allocation of the pooled 
investment is included in the respective fund's cash and cash equivalents. 

The deposits and investments of the fiduciary funds are administered by trustees and are held 
separately from those of public funds. 

A. Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City does not have a 
custodial credit risk policy for deposits. As of December 31,2013, the City's book balance 
was $8,695,998 and the bank balance was $10,355,261. Of the bank balance, $489,245 was 
covered by federal depository insurance, $9,805,646 was collateralized under Act No. 72 of 
the 1971 Session of the Pennsylvania General Assembly (Act), in which financial institutions 
were granted the authority to secure deposits of public bodies by pledging a pool of assets, as 
defined in the Act, to cover all public funds deposited in excess of federal depository 
insurance limits, and $60,3 70 was uncollateralized. 
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Cash and cash equivalents per fmancial statement: 
Governmental activities: 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Business-type activities: 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Fiduciary funds: 
Agency funds 

Less money market funds 

Total deposits 

B. Investments 

$ 2,674,864 
1,017,932 

2,878,697 
10,557,879 

692,008 

17,821,380 
(9, 125,382) 

$ 8,695,998 

The fair value of the investments of the City at December 31, 2013 was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Restricted - Money market funds 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Restricted: 

Money market funds 
U.S. Government obligations 

Total business-type activities 
Fiduciary funds: 

Pension trust funds: 
Fixed income mutual funds 
Collective investment trusts 
Equity mutual funds 
Common stock 

Total fiduciary funds 

Total investments 
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$ 

Fair Value 

395,856 

395,856 

8,729,526 
2,297,887 

11,027,413 

18,688,951 
6,081,115 

61,114,431 
10,015,946 

95,900,443 

$ 107,323,712 
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Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to an investment 
transaction will fail and the government will not recover the value of the investment or 
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The City does not have an 
investment policy for custodial credit risk. The City's investment in U.S. Government 
obligations and common stock are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent not in 
the City's name. The City's remaining investments are not exposed to custodial credit risk 
because they are not evidenced by securities in book entry or paper form. 

The U.S. government obligations of the business-type activities are comprised of U.S. 
Treasury bills and U.S. Treasury principal-only STRIPS. These particular STRIPS have little 
credit and legal risk while the market risk is significant as principal-only STRIPS are more 
sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates than other traditional investments. The carrying 
amount of these STRIPS at December 31, 2013 was $2,297,887 and is reported as part of 
restricted investments on the statement of net position. 

Concentration of credit I"isk. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in 
any one issuer. At December 31, 2013, there were no investments held by the City that 
exceeded five percent of the City's total portfolio. 

Credit risk. The City does not have a formal policy that would limit its investment choices 
with regard to credit risk. The City's investments had the following level of exposure to credit 
risk as of December 31, 2013: 

Fair Value Rating 

Money market funds $ 9,125,382 AAA 
Fixed income mutual funds 6,724,385 AAA 
Fixed income mutual funds 1,911,959 AI 
Fixed income mutual funds 4,988,435 AA 
Fixed income mutual funds 5,064,172 A 
Collective investment trusts 6,081,115 Unrated 
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Interest rate risk. The City does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The 
following is a list of the City's money market and fixed income investments and their related 
average maturities: 

Investment Maturity 
Fair Value 2014 2015-2019 2020-2024 

Money market funds $ 9,125,382 $ 9,125,382 $ $ 
U.S. Government obligations 2,297,887 1,435,622 862,265 
Fixed income mutual funds 18,688,951 1,911,959 6,724,385 10,052,607 

$ 30,112,220 $ 12,472,963 $ 7,586,650 $ 10,052,607 

Component Units 

General Authority 

The deposit and investment policy of the General Authority adheres to state statutes, prudent 
business practices, and the applicable trust indentures. The General Authority deposits cash in 
local financial institutions. 

Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The General Authority does not have a 
deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2013, the General Authority's 
book balance was $1,683,117 and the bank balance was $1,776,344. A total of $250,000 of 
the bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance at December 31, 2013, and the 
remaining $1,526,344 was collateralized under Act No. 72 of the 1971 Session of the 
Pennsylvania General Assembly, in which financial institutions were granted the authority to 
secure deposits of public bodies by pledging a pool of assets, as defined in the Act, to cover all 
public funds deposited in excess of federal depository insurance limits. 

Redevelopment Authority 

The deposit and investment policy of the Redevelopment Authority adheres to state statutes, 
prudent business practices, and the applicable trust indentures. The Redevelopment Authority 
deposits cash in local financial institutions. 
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Custodial Credit Risk - The Redevelopment Authority does not have a deposit policy for 
custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2013, the Redevelopment Authority's book and bank 
balances were $1,027,868. A total of $593,496 of the bank balance was covered by federal 
depository insurance at December 31, 2013, and the remaining $434,372 was collateralized 
under Act No. 72 of the 1971 Session of the Pennsylvania General Assembly, in which 
financial institutions were granted the authority to secure deposits of public bodies by pledging 
a pool of assets, as defined in the Act, to cover all public funds deposited in excess of federal 
depository insurance limits. 

Investments 

At December 31,2013, the fair value of the Redevelopment Authority's investment in money 
market funds was $21,673. 

Credit risk- The Redevelopment Authority does not have a formal policy that would limit its 
investment choices with regard to credit risk. At December 31,2013, the money market funds 
were rated AMm by Standard & Poor's. 

Interest rate risk - The Redevelopment Authority does not have a formal policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. The Redevelopment Authority's money market funds had a weighted 
average maturity ofless than one year. 

6. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS- COMPONENT UNITS 

Due from other governments in the amount of $1,732,931 is composed of the following: 

Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program­
Renovation and Construction of Northwest Triangle 
Project- Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, net of 
allowance of $644,643 $ 1,732,931 

Grants received are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed 
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability. The Redevelopment 
Authority has used its best estimate to report an allowance based on currently known facts and 
circumstances. 
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Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program Renovation -Northwest Triangle Project 

The Northwest Triangle (Triangle) project is an urban revitalization project that covers more 
than 45 acres. The Triangle encompasses an underutilized, largely heavy industrial zoning 
district within a rail corridor. The goal of the project is to acquire, assemble, remediate, and 
make 'shovel ready' land within the redevelopment area. Once this separate and distinct 
project is complete, the City's hope is that it will be revitalized into a mixed-use neighborhood 
development that will include residential, recreation, and commercial office space 
components. 

The Redevelopment Authority has entered into a Redevelopment Assistance Capital Project 
(RACP) grant agreement with the Commonwealth to provide assistance for the acquisition of 
land and related infrastructure improvements that are required to get the land ready for future 
reuse. The discrete horizontal portion of the project has an approximate estimated cost of 
$14,650,000 of which $7,000,000 is earmarked as RACP assistance and the remaining portion 
is to be provided from a local match. 

The grant receivable currently recorded at December 31, 2013, in the net amount of 
$1,732,931, is based on the costs incurred to date which are expected to be reimbursed under 
the RACP grant. In order for the Redevelopment Authority to receive the full amount of the 
reimbursement, the local match requirement must be satisfied in accordance with the grant 
agreement. The matching fund requirement for the Redevelopment Authority is $7,000,000, 
as outlined in the grant guidelines. As of December 31, 2013, the Redevelopment Authority 
has secured the local match. 

At December 31, 2013, an allowance in the amount of $644,643 was established for costs 
incurred under the RACP project, but not yet recognized as reimbursable by the 
Commonwealth. No amounts were received under the RACP grant during the year ended 
December 31, 2013. 

Reimbursements under the grant are based upon the satisfaction of various special conditions 
of the grant and the Commonwealth's approval of the reimbursement requests. 

Grants received or amounts expected to be received are subject to audit and adjustment by the 
Commonwealth. Any disallowed claims may constitute a liability or reduction of a receivable. 
The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the Commonwealth cannot be 
determined at this time. However, the Redevelopment Authority has used its best estimate to 
report an allowance based on currently known facts and circumstances. 

The Redevelopment Authority has incurred costs on behalf of this project and utilized a non­
revolving line of credit to fund the costs. During the year ended December 31, 2012, this line 
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of credit was paid in full with loan proceeds borrowed in the form of a non-revolving time 
loan, which has a balance of $2,450,000 as of December 31, 2013. It is the Redevelopment 
Authority's intention to use future reimbursements from the RACP grant to pay the 
outstanding balance on the loan. The City agrees to assist the Redevelopment Authority with 
any remaining balance on the loan. 

7. LOANS RECEIVABLE 

York Scattered Sites Loans 

During 2001, the City entered into three separate loan agreements under a project known as 
the York Scattered Sites Project for the purpose of rehabilitating seven historic buildings 
containing 31 residential rental units and six commercial spaces located within the City's 
historic west end. The loans for the projects are as follows: 

In September of 2001, the City entered into a promissory note agreement to lend 
$1,000,000 to a local non-profit corporation for the purpose of rehabilitating, preserving 
and/or enhancing seven properties containing 31 dwelling units for rent. The full face of 
the note plus payment of 1% simple interest per year will become due on October 1, 2017. 
At this time, the City may demand payment or, in lieu of payment, they may elect one of 
two options, which include the right of first refusal to purchase the property or to extend 
the loan for an additional 15 years. If the City elects to extend the loan for an additional 15 
years, the entire principal amount and any accrued interest will be forgiven at the end of 
the 15-year period. The loan receivable is recorded within the particular fnnd from which 
the funds were disbursed. Accordingly, $522,750 is recorded within the Community 
Development Block Grant Fund and $327,250 is recorded in the Home Fund, net of an 
allowance of $150,000. The entire loan balance has been recorded as unearned revenue in 
the fund financial statements as of December 31, 2013. 

In September of2001, the City entered into a promissory note agreement to lend $335,000 
to a Pennsylvania limited partnership for the purpose of rehabilitating six commercial 
properties within the City. The loan is secured by a mortgage with interest charged at 3% 
per annum. The full amount of the note plus accrued interest is due September 7, 2031. 
The loan receivable, in the amount of $284,750, net of an allowance of $50,250, is 
recorded within the Section 108 Loan Fund and the entire loan balance has been recorded 
as unearned revenue in the fund financial statements as of December 31, 2013. 

In September of2001, the City entered into a promissory note agreement to lend $220,000 
to a local non-profit corporation for the purpose of rehabilitating six commercial properties 
within the City. The loan is secured by a mortgage with interest charged at 1% per annum. 
The full amount of the note plus accrued interest is due September 7, 2017. The loan 
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receivable, in the amount of $187,000, net of an allowance of $33,000, is recorded within 
the General Fund and the entire loan balance has been recorded as unearned revenue in the 
fund financial statements as of December 31, 2013. 

Historic Fairmount Project Loan 

In November of 2002, the City entered into a loan agreement with a Pennsylvania limited 
partnership in which the City has agreed to loan a maximum of $1,050,000 of funds from the 
Section 108 Loan Fund, the CDBG Program, and the Home Program for the purpose of the 
acquisition, rehabilitation, and construction of 14 parcels of real estate, to provide 38 units of 
affordable housing for general occupancy in the City. The loan bears no interest and the 
principal shall be due and payable December 31, 2035. As of December 31, 2013, a total 
amount of $715,790 has been advanced on this loan. The loan receivable is recorded within 
the particular fund in which the funds were disbursed. Accordingly, $26,442 is recorded 
within the Home Fund, $264,854 is recorded within the Community Development Block 
Grant Fund, and $317,126 is recorded within the Section I 08 Fund, net of an allowance of 
$107,368. The entire loan balance has been recorded as unearned revenue in the fund financial 
statement as of December 31, 2013. 

Shady Oak Apartments Limited Partnership 

In November of 1993, the City entered into a promissmy note agreement with a Pennsylvania 
limited partnership in which the City has agreed to lend $600,000 of funds from the Home 
Program for the purpose of rehabilitation, preservation, and enhancement of primarily rental 
residential real property containing 35 dwelling units for rent or lease to tenants. The loan is 
secured by a mortgage, with interest charged at l% per annum. The full amount of the note, 
plus accrued interest, was originally due and payable December 1, 2009 and was extended 
through December 1, 2024. An allowance of the full amount of the note was previously 
recorded within the Home Fund. This loan was forgiven in full during the year ended 
December 31,2013. 

George Street Commons Loan 

In April of 2012, the City entered into a loan agreement with a Pennsylvania limited 
partnership in whieh the City has agreed to lend $750,000 of funds from the Home Program 
for the purpose of the construction of28 town homes. The loan is secured by a mortgage, with 
interest charged at 2% per annum. The full amount of the loan plus accrued interest is due 
April 2, 2042. The loan receivable, in the amount of $637,500, net of an allowance of 
$112,500, is recorded within the Home Fund and the entire loan balance has been recorded as 
unearned revenue in the fund financial statements as of December 31, 20 13. 
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Homes at Thackston Park Loan 

In September of 2012, the City entered into a loan agreement with a Pennsylvania limited 
partnership in which the City has agreed to loan a maximum of $750,000 of funds from the 
Home Fund for the purpose of the construction of 39 town homes. The loan is secured by a 
mortgage, with interest charged at l% per annum. The full amount of the loan plus accrued 
interest is due September 24,2042. As of December 31,2013, a total amount of$551,000 has 
been advanced on this loan. The loan receivable, in the amount of $468,350, net of an 
allowance of $82,650, is recorded within the Home Fund and the entire loan balance has been 
recorded as unearned revenue in the fund financial statements as of December 31, 2013. 

Component Units 

Redevelopment Authority 

Loans receivable in the amount of$1,056,988 at December 31, 2013 are composed of: 

The following loans were made utilizing funds received from the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Depatiment of Community and 
Economic Development (DCED) for Housing and Redevelopment 
and Assistance program (HRA): 

HRA 2009 loan bearing interest at 5% per annum with interest 
only paid annually until maturity date in 2018, at which time 
the entire $500,000 is due 

HRA 2010 loan bearing interest at rates varying from 1% to 3% 
per annum paid annually until maturity date in 2020, at which 

$ 500,000 

time the entire $500,000 is due 500,000 

Multiple revolving loans made under a United States Department 
of Agriculture grant program with varying terms 56,988 

Total loans receivable $ 1,056,988 

8. NOTE RECEIVABLE 

The General Authority entered into a Note Receivable Agreement (Note) with a long-term 
tenant of the King Street Garage, whereby, the tenant will reimburse the General Authority for 
the cost associated with a renovation project. Under the Note, the tenant will pay the General 
Authority $2,741 per month including interest at 3.75% and principal, commencing on July I, 
2012 and monthly thereafter until June I, 2017. A corresponding unearned revenue has been 
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recorded for the amount of the Note, which will be amortized over the life of the renovations 
as payments are received. For the year ended December 31, 2013, a total of $25,975 was 
recognized as revenue under terms of this agreement. 

9. DUE TO/FROM AND INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Individual due tolfi·om other fund balances at December 31,2013 were as follows: 

General Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
Other governmental funds 
Intermunicipal Sewer Fund 
Sewer Fund 
Ice Rink Fund 
Other enterprise funds 
Internal Service Fund 
Pension Trust Funds 

Total primary government 

Due From 
Other Funds 

$ 341,493 
12,777 
60,000 

2,040,320 

3,394,147 
6,934,223 

$ 12,782,960 

Due To 
Other Funds 

$ 6,481,699 
3,182,859 
1,300,693 

428,393 

652,727 
211,288 
525,301 

$ 12,782,960 

Primarily, interfund balances represent short term borrowings between funds for the purpose 
of eliminating negative cash. Additionally, the amount due to the Pension Trust Funds from 
the General Fund is for a portion of the 2012 and 2013 minimum municipal obligation plus 
accrued interest. 
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A reconciliation of the interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

General Fund $ 2,654,767 $ 1,359,351 
Debt Service Fund 1,199,537 620,596 
Capital Projects Fund 799,875 
Other governmental funds 90,458 184,148 
lntermunicipal Sewer Fund 412,796 
Sewer Fund 412,796 3,077,226 
Ice Rink Fund 496,684 

Total primary govermnent $ 5,654,117 $ 5,654,117 

Transfers are used to (1) reimburse funds for expenses incurred on behalf of other funds, (2) 
move receipts for payment of debt service, and (3) fulfill budgetary transfer requirements. 
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10. LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES 

The City has subleased the right to connect to the City's sewage system to six surrounding 
municipalities, whereby the City would receive, treat, and dispose of the municipalities' 
sewage. The municipalities are required to participate in payment of operating expenses, debt 
service on the guaranteed sewer revenue bonds, Series of 1990, Series of2008, Series of2010, 
Series 201 OA, and Series 2011, and pay a service charge based on usage for the express 
purpose of maintenance, repair, and replacement of the existing interceptor system. This 
service charge is accounted for in the Sewer Fund. 

Minimum lease rentals receivable as of December 31, 2013 are: 

Years Ending 

December 31, Amount 

2014 $ 3,003,627 
2015 3,023,626 
2016 3,021,339 
2017 2,865,571 
2018 2,867,444 
2019 2,627,010 
2020 855,053 
2021 826,907 
2022 2,202,000 
2023 5,006,894 
2024 5,010,874 
2025 3,823,600 
2026 2,796,122 
2027 I 227 533 

Total minimum lease rentals receivable 39,157,600 

Less amount representing interest 

(at an average rate of3.2%) (10,263,456) 

Present value of minimum lease rentals receivable 28,894,144 

Less current installments of lease rentals (1,707,324) 

Lease rentals, excluding current installments $ 27,186,820 

42 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31, 2013 

11. CAPITALASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2013 was as follows: 

Primary Government 

Beginning Retirements and 
of Year Additions DisE:ositions 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 
Land $ 5,927,157 $ $ 
Construction in progress 3,045,143 4,148,127 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 8,972,300 4,148,127 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 13,192,165 149,761 
Land improvements 4,940,300 30,147 
Equipment and furniture 19,636,762 395,339 (123,918) 
Infrastructure 77,Q31,588 414,215 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 114,800,815 989,462 (123,918) 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings ( 4,321,890) (293,581) 
Land improvements (2,767,332) (162,506) 
Equipment and furniture (14,073,001) (1,038, 127) 121,036 
Infrastructure (50,738,642) (2, 172,344) 

Total accumulated depreciation (71 ,900,865) (3,666,558) 121,036 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated, net 42,899,950 (2,677,096) (2,882) 

Goverrunental activities 
capital assets, net $51,872,250 $ 1,471,031 $ (2,882) 
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End of Year 

$ 5,927,157 
7,193,270 

13,120,427 

13,341,926 
4,970,447 

19,908,183 
77,445,803 

115,666,359 

(4,615,471) 
(2,929,838) 

(14,990,092) 
(52,910,986) 

(75,446,387) 

40,219,972 

$53,340,399 
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Retirements and 
Begillling Additions/ Dispositions/ 
of Year Transfers In Transfers Out End of Year 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 

Land $ 17,445 $ $ $ 17,445 
Construction in progress 19,855 664 64,341 (19,091,859) 828,146 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 19,873,109 64,341 (19,091,859) 845,591 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 112,564,102 19,229,490 131,793,592 
Land improvements 22,145 22,145 
Equipment and furniture 4,455,619 127,471 4,583,090 
Infrastructure 17,790,034 21,725 17,811,759 

Total capital assets being depreciated 134,831 900 19,378,686 154,210,586 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (50, 145, 158) (3,580,010) (53,725,168) 
Land improvements (10,314) (1,106) (11,420) 
Equipment and ftuniture (3,045,721) (303,047) (3,348,768) 
Infrastructure (9, 178,942) (273,578) (9,452,520) 

Total accumulated depreciation (62,380,135) (4,157,741) (66,537,876) 

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated, net 72,451,765 15,220,945 87,672,710 

Business-type activities 
capital assets, net $92,324,874 $ 15,285,286 $ (19,091,859) $88,518,301 
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Sanitation 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Community development and planning 
Other departments and programs 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Internal services fund depreciation expense allocated 
to governmental activities 

Total depreciation expense for governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer 
Ice rink 

Total depreciation and amortization expenses for business-type 
activities 
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$ 48,616 
26,809 

688,274 
135,996 

2,381,928 
253,658 

73,881 
15,515 

3,624,677 

41,881 

$3,666,558 

$ 3,888,951 
268,790 

$4157741 
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Component Units 

Redevelopment Authority: 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and improvements 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Redevelopment Authority: 
Capital assets, net 

General Authority: 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and improvements 
Less accumulated depreciation 

General Authority: 
Capital assets, net 

Beginning of Retirements and 
Year Additions Distributions 

$ 3,525,065 $ $ 

(1,410,030) (141,003) 

$ 2,115,035 $ (141,003) $ 

$ 14,907,360 $ 61,063 $ 
(7,854, 174) __ _,_( 4 __ 78'-'-,4_17_:...) -----

$ 7,053,186 $ (417,354) ~$==== 

12. TAX ANTICIPATION NOTE OF 2013 

End of 
Year 

$ 3,525,065 
(1,551,033) 

$ 1,974,032 

$ 14,968,423 
(8,332,591) 

$ 6,635,832 

In February of 2013, the City borrowed $5,700,000 in the form of a Tax and Revenue 
Anticipation Note, Series of 2013, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 0.95% per annum until 
June 30,2013 and thereafter at a variable rate equal to LIBOR plus 0.75% per annum, to cover 
the shortfall of revenues in excess of expenditures from January I through mid-April, when 
real estate tax revenues become available. Total interest paid during the year was $20,908. 
The entire balance ofthe note was paid in full by the City during the year ended December 31, 
2013. 

Tax anticipation note transactions for the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows: 

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 
New borrowings 
Repayments 

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 
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13. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for tbe year ended December 31, 2013 was as follows: 

Primary Government 

Governmental Beginning of End of Current 

Activities: Year Additions Accretion Retirements Year Portion 

Loans from other 

governmental 

entities $ 3,150,000 $ $ $ (240,000) $ 2,910,000 $ 240,000 

General Obligation 

Notes 6,021,591 255,615 (1,145,634) 5,131,572 1,025,901 

General Obligation 

Bonds 45,487,145 2,026,454 (3,600,000) 43,913,599 4,335,550 

Capitalized lease 

obligation 3,256,595 149,065 (546,660) 2,859,000 458,285 

Vested compensated 

absences 1,250,825 67,837 1,318,662 

Other post-employment 

liability 14,407,204 5,012,152 (2,425,518) 16,993,838 

$ 73,573,360 $ 5,229,054 $ 2,282,069 $ (7,957,812) $ 73,126,671 $ 6,059,736 

Business-type Begitming of End of Current 

Activities: Year Additions Accretion Retirements Year Portion 

Sewer Revenue 

Bonds $ 57,759,243 $ $ 912,049 $ (4,015,382) $ 54,655,910 $ 4,096,843 

Unamortized discount (334,866) 36,138 (298,728) 

Recreation 

Revenue Bonds 4,435,000 (395,000) 4,040,000 415,000 

Capitalized lease 

obligations 626,513 (127,586) 498,927 127,521 

Vested compensated 

absences 115,520 (5,695) 109,825 

Other post-employment 

liability 351,468 76,491 (37,016) 390,943 

$ 62,952,878 $ 76,491 $ 912,049 $ (4,544,541) $ 59,396,877 $ 4,639,364 
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Component Units 

Redevelopment 
Authority: 

Revenue bonds 

Promissory note 

Non-revolving 
RACP loan 

General Authority: 
Notes payable 

Beginning of 
Year 

$ 2,845,000 $ 

$ 500,000 $ 

$ 2,450,000 $ 

Additions Retirements 
End of 
Year 

Current 
Portion 

$ (!20,000) $ 2,725,000 $ 130,000 

$ $ 500,000 ~$~== 

$ $ 2,450,000 $ 2,450,000 

$ 4,558,824 $ 4,510,000 $ (4,558,824) $ 4,510,000 $ 130,500 

Loans from Other Governmental Entities 

In 2001, the City entered into a Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance under Section 108 of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. The funds under the contract were 
utilized for the purpose of rental housing rehabilitation and other various projects, as defined 
in the contract. In August of 2002, trust certificates guaranteed by the Secretary of Housing 
and Urban Development were sold in an underwritten public offering. These trust certificates 
are backed by a pool comprised of the original note, as defined by the loan contract. The 
balance due, as of December 31, 2013, was $800,000. In January, 2014, the City refinanced 
the remaining balance of this fixed interest rate loan to a variable interest rate based on the 
LIBOR rate plus 0.20%. The loan matures on August 1, 2020. 

In 2009, the City entered into a Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance under Section 108 of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. The funds under the contract were to 
be used for the paving of City streets and various improvements to City-owned buildings. The 
City has pledged its full faith and credit towards the repayment of the Section 108 loan 
obligation, should the City's Community Development Block Grant funds be insufficient to 
meet the debt service requirements of the Section 108 loan. The balance due, as of December 
31,2013, was $2,110,000. 
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The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under loans 
from other governmental entities as of December 31, 2013 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, Princieal Interest 

2014 $ 240,000 $ 119,276 
2015 240,000 111,326 
2016 240,000 102,686 
2017 240,000 93,292 
2018 240,000 83,448 

2019-2023 1,005,000 257,391 
2024-2028 705,000 89,944 

$ 2,910,000 $ 857,363 

General Obligation Notes 

The general obligation notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 

General obligation notes payable at December 31, 2013 are comprised of: 

Issue Interest Amount 
Series Amount Maturity Rates Outstanding 

General Obligation 
Refunding Notes, 
Series D of 1998 $ 7,634,459 Through 2023 0.00% $ 6,830,000 

General Obligation Notes, 
Series of2006 1,337,500 Through 2015 6.25% 352,632 

General Obligation Notes at December 31, 2013 7,182,632 

Less unamortized discount on zero coupon notes (2,051 ,060) 

General Obligation Notes, net of discount, at December 31, 2013 $ 5,131,572 
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The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under general 
obligation notes at December 31, 2013 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, Principal Interest 

2014 $ 1,025,901 $ 22,346 
2015 691,731 11,516 
2016 360,000 
2017 200,000 
2018 160,000 

2019-2023 4,745,000 

7,182,632 33,862 
Unamortized 
discount (2,051,060) 

$ 5,131,572 $ 33,862 
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General Obligation Bonds 

The general obligation bonds outstanding are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 

The following is a summary of general obligation bond issues as of December 31, 2013: 

Issue Interest Amount 
Series Amount Maturity Rates Outstanding 

1995A $ 76,030,000 Through 2022 0.00%-6.50% $ 36,585,000 
1998B 4,440,000 Through 2024 0.00% 4,440,000 
2011 11,265,000 Through 2041 7.25% 11,120,000 
2011A 585,550 Through 20 14 Variable (2.664% 

at December 31, 
2013) 585,550 

201\B 2,200,000 Through 2027 9.00% 2,100,000 

General Obligation Bonds at December 31, 2013 54,830,550 

Less unamortized discount on zero coupon notes 
(Series A of 1995) (9,009,583) 
(Series B of 1998) (1,907,368) 

General Obligation Bonds, net of discount, at December 31, 2013 $ 43,913,599 
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The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under general 
obligation bonds at December 31,2013 are as follows: 

December 31, Principal Interest 

2014 $ 4,335,550 $ 1,010, 799 
2015 4,115,000 974,962 
2016 4,285,000 953,100 
2017 4,460,000 929,700 
2018 4,520,000 905,126 

2019-2023 19,040,000 4,094,450 
2024-2028 6,830,000 3,182,152 
2029-2033 2,040,000 2,350,452 
2034-2038 2,910,000 1,493,862 
2039-2041 2,295,000 340,757 

54,830,550 16,235,360 
Unamortized 
discount (10,916,951) 

$ 43,913,599 $ 16,235,360 

Prior Year Defeasance of Debt 

The City has, from time to time, defeased certain debt by placing the proceeds of new debt in 
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old debt. The trust 
account assets and the liability of the defeased debt are not included in the City's financial 
statements. At December 31, 2013, the following defeased debt was outstanding: 

General Obligation Bonds, 
Series A of 1995 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds 

Funds 
Escrowed as of 
December 31, 

2013 

$ 9,601,489 

Defeased Debt 
Outstanding as of 

December 31, 
2013 

$ 6,833,182 

The guaranteed sewer revenue bonds outstanding are backed by the full faith and credit of the 
City. 
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Guaranteed sewer revenue bonds payable at December 31, 2013 are comprised of the 
following individual bond issue: 

Issue Interest Amount 
Series Amount Maturity Rates Outstanding 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds - Series of 1990 $ 69,775,000 Through 2016 0.00% $ 11,620,000 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds - Series of 2008 10,000,000 Through 2022 3.75% 10,000,000 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds - Series of 2010 22,745,000 Through 202 7 4.50-5.00% 22,745,000 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds- Series A of2010 10,540,000 Through 2019 2.50-4.00% 10,540,000 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue 
Bonds- Series of2011 1,500,000 Through 2021 1.00% 1,164,218 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds at December 31, 2013 56,069,218 

Less unamortized discount on zero coupon bonds (1,413,308) 

Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds, net of discount, at December 31, 2013 $ 54,655,910 

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under the 
guaranteed sewer revenue bonds at December 31, 20 13 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, Principal Interest 

2014 $ 4,096,843 $ 1,758,614 
2015 4,138,318 1,754,514 
2016 4,139,808 1,748,999 
2017 3,611,313 1,743,894 
2018 3,707,833 1,650,874 

2019-2023 14,350,103 7,174,588 
2024-2027 22,025,000 2,004,393 

56,069,218 17,835,876 
Unamortized discount (1,413,308) 

$ 54,655,910 $ 17,835,876 
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Economic Defeasance of Guaranteed Sewer Revenue Bonds 

On July 15, 1998, the Sewer Authority entered into an escrow deposit agreement for partial 
defeasance of the 1990 York City Sewer Authority Bonds. $5,000,000 was deposited into this 
escrow, which was obtained from capital grants from the federal government. This transaction 
is not considered a legal defeasance and there was no verification of the escrow performed. 
Because this is not a legal defeasance, the bonds are not removed from the financial statements 
and the escrow transactions are recorded. This transaction reduces the lease rental receivable 
from the municipalities based upon the present value of the defeased bonds and the percentage 
of the debt owed by the municipalities. 

York City Recreation Corporation Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series of 2001 

The York Recreation Corporation was unable to make its required interest payment in 
November of 2003. As Guarantor of the obligation, the City assumed the obligation. By 
resolution on October 14, 2003, the City took possession of the facilities and related personal 
property in consideration for assuming this obligation. 

York City Recreation Corporation Guaranteed Revenue Bonds (recreation revenue bonds) 
payable at December 31, 2013 are comprised of the following individual bond issue: 

Series 

2001 

Issue 
Amount Maturity 

$ 7,305,000 Through 2021 

Interest 
Rates 

4.10-5.15% 

Amount 
Outstanding 

$ 4,040,000 

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the City under the 
guaranteed recreation revenue bonds at December 31, 2013 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, Princi~al Interest 

2014 $ 415,000 $ 204,803 
2015 440,000 181,290 
2016 465,000 156,402 
2017 490,000 130,140 
2018 520,000 102,365 

2019-2021 1,710,000 133,900 

$ 4,040,000 $ 908,900 
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Capitalized Lease Obligations 

The City leases certain equipment under long-term lease agreements which are classified as 
capital leases. As of December 31, 2013, the governmental activities and the business-type 
activities include equipment and furniture under capital leases with a net book value of 
$2,326,771 and $615,007, respectively. 

The future minimum payments under capital leases and the present value of the future 
minimum lease payments at December 31, 2013 are as follows: 

Year ending Govemmental Business-type 
December 3 I, Activities Activities Total 

2014 $ 582,027 $ 145,741 $ 727,768 

2015 545,402 141,568 686,970 

2016 482,749 96,957 579,706 

2017 429,260 26,219 455,479 

2018 410,430 26,219 436,649 

2019-2023 922,471 131,096 1,053,567 

Total minimum lease payments 3,372,339 567,800 3,940,139 

Less amount representing interest (513,339) (68,873) (582,212) 

Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 2,859,000 $ 498,927 $ 3,357,927 

Redevelopment Authority Series of 2002 Revenue Bonds 

In January of 2002, the Redevelopment Authority issued the Series of 2002 Variable Rate 
Demand/Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds for the amount of$3,725,000. The Bonds were issued for 
the purpose of financing the Susquehanna Commerce Center Garage Project. 

The Bonds are not general obligations of the Redevelopment Authority and do not pledge the 
taxing power of the City. The principal and interest on these Bonds is payable only from 
certain receipts including net parking rentals, rates and other charges collected by the 
Redevelopment Authority for the use of the parking facility. 

The Redevelopment Authority entered into a management agreement with Creekside Investors 
L.P. (Manager), whereby Creekside Investors, L.P. managed and operated the parking 
facilities on behalf of the Redevelopment Authority. Under the agreement, the Manager, on 
behalf of the Redevelopment Authority, collected all parking fees, rents, charges, and other 
income attributable to the parking facilities. The Manager deposited receipts in a segregated 
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account to be used to pay costs, fees, and expenses incurred by the Manager in the 
performance of its duties under the management agreement. In addition, the Manager, on 
behalf of the Redevelopment Authority, pays amounts due to the trustee. Effective February 
2009, Creekside Investors, L.P. submitted a Parking Assignment Agreement to the 
Redevelopment Authority since Creekside Investors, L.P. dissolved. The assignment is to 
Susquehanna Commerce Center Condominium Association, Inc. The management agreement 
term ends January 1, 2016 or such earlier time as mutually agreeable to both the Manager and 
the Redevelopment Authority. 

The Bonds initially bear interest at a variable rate, determined by the Remarketing Agent 
(Agent). The rate is based on a minimum rate that, in the judgment of the Agent, taking into 
account prevailing market conditions, would enable the Agent to sell all of the Bonds on the 
adjustment date at a price equal to the principal plus accrued interest. The Issuer may from 
time to time, with written consent of the Credit Facility Provider, change the interest rate on 
the Bonds from a variable to a fixed rate over one or more consecutive fixed rate periods. 

The Redevelopment Authority bonds payable at December 31, 2013 are comprised of the 
following individual bond issue: 

Series 

2002 Revenue Bonds 

Issue 
Amount Maturily 

Interest 
Rates 

Variable (5.5% at 

Amount 
Outstanding 

$ 3,725,000 Through 2027 December 31, 2013) $ 2,725,000 

The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the Redevelopment 
Authority under the 2002 Revenue Bonds using the 5.5% interest rate in effect at December 
31,2013 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, Principal Interest 

2014 $ 130,000 $ 148,385 
2015 135,000 141,178 
2016 145,000 133,639 
2017 155,000 125,549 
2018 165,000 116,909 

2019-2023 980,000 435,646 
2024-2027 1,015,000 132,470 

$ 2,725,000 $ 1,233,776 
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Redevelopment Authority 2012 Note and Loan Payables 

In May 20 12, the Redevelopment Authority entered into a promissory note agreement 
whereby the Redevelopment Authority borrowed $500,000 with interest at 5% per annum, 
with interest only paid annually until the maturity date in 2018, at which time the entire 
$500,000 is due. The note payable is secured by a pledge of installment payments of principal 
and interest for which the Redevelopment Authority is owed under the 2009 HRA loan, as 
referenced in Note 7. $500,000 remains outstanding as of December 31,2013. 

In October of2012, the Redevelopment Authority borrowed $2,450,000 in the form of a non­
revolving time loan, for a period of 12 months, with the option to extend for one additional12-
month period, bearing interest at an annual rate of 3.75%, to be repaid with RACP grant 
funding. The loan proceeds were utilized to pay off the original non-revolving line of credit 
agreement entered in November 2006 to finance the Northwest Triangle Project, as indicated 
in Note 14. In November 2013, the non-revolving time loan was extended until October 26, 
2014. At the maturity date, the entire unpaid principal balance plus all accrued and outstanding 
interest is due and payable. $2,450,000 remains outstanding as of December 31,2013 and it is 
the Redevelopment Authority's intention to use the future reimbursements from the RACP 
grant to pay the outstanding balance on the loan. The City agrees to assist the Redevelopment 
Authority with any remaining balance on the loan. 

General Authority Series of 2008 Promissory Note 

In 2008, the General Authority issued the Series of 2008 Promissory Note in the amount of 
$5,000,000, the proceeds of which were to be used to finance the renovation to the Market 
Street Garage, along with improvements to the General Authority's other assets. The loan was 
interest-only for three years during the draw-down period, followed by seventeen years of 
amortization, maturing December 23, 2028. 

General Authority Series of 2013 Revenue Note 

In 2013, the General Authority issued the Series of 2013 Revenue Note, in the amount of 
$4,510,000, for the current refunding of the Series of 2008 Promissory Note and to pay costs 
of issuance. The current refunding decreased its total debt payments by $223,753 through the 
year 2028 and resulted in an economic gain of $383,119 (difference between the present values 
of the old and new debt service payments). Interest is payable semi-annually at an initial rate of 
2.71% per annum until November 15, 2018. Thereafter, the rate changes to 60% of the bank's 
prime rate or a fixed rate for a period of time mutually agreed upon by the bank and the 
Authority, but in no event less than 2.20% or above 6.00% per annum. The loan matures on 
November 15, 2028. 
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The annual principal and interest requirements for amounts due from the General Authority 
under the Revenue Note using the fixed rate in effect at December 31, 2013 of2.71% are as 
follows: 

Years Ending 
December 31, Princieal Interest 

2014 $ 130,500 $ 137,499 
2015 205,300 118,684 
2016 286,900 113,120 
2017 294,700 105,346 
2018 302,600 97,360 

2019-2023 1,495,200 504,764 
2024-2028 1,794,800 205,180 

$ 4,510,000 $ 1,281,953 

14. REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY LINE OF CREDIT 

In November 2006, the Redevelopment Authority entered into a $5.5 million non-revolving 
line of credit agreement with a local bank through November 2009. In March 2008, a loan 
modification agreement was approved to extend the line of credit up to $7 million. Fixed 
interest of 6.4% was payable monthly. On December 21, 2009, a loan modification agreement 
was approved to extend the maturity date of the line of credit to December 5, 2012 and to 
reduce the interest rate to 5.4%, commencing the day after the bank receives a payment of no 
less than $1 million from the RACP grant proceeds. No payments were received in 2013. The 
line of credit has paid the expenses associated with the Redevelopment Authority's RACP 
grant funded by the Commonwealth. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the line of 
credit was paid in full as indicated in Note 13. 

On January 16, 2009, the Redevelopment Authority entered into a $750,000 revolving line of 
credit agreement with a local bank through June 30, 2010. In June 2010, a modification 
agreement was approved, which extended the maturity date to June 30, 20 II. During 20 II, the 
local bank allowed an extension of the maturity date, although no modification agreements 
were officially approved by the bank. Variable interest of prime plus 0.50%, not to exceed 
5.75%, is payable monthly. The line of credit has been paying for expenses associated with 
construction costs relative to the environmental remediation of the Northwest Triangle Project. 
The amount drawn shall never exceed the amount remaining under the Redevelopment 
Authority's $1,050,000 Growing Greener II Grant (Growing Greener), funded by the 
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Commonwealth. The outstanding balance of $19,169 was paid in full during the year ended 
December 31, 2013. 

The Redevelopment Authority's line of credit activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 
was as follows: 

Growing Greener Line of Credit 

Beginning of 
Year Issued 

$ 19,169 ..::$~== 

Redeemed 
End of 
Year 

$ (19,169) ..::$~== 

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (PENSION TRUST FUNDS) 

Description of the Plans 

The City maintains single-employer defined benefit plans (Plans) for Officers and Employees, 
Police, and Paid Firefighters, which are accounted for as pension trust funds. Participation in 
the plans is a required condition of employment for all regular, full-time employees, except 
laborers paid on a per diem basis. The plans do not issue separate financial statements. 

The plans are governed by the Third Class City Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, 
as amended. At January 1, 2013, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, employees 
covered under the City's pension plans consisted of: 

Officers and 
Employees Police Pension Paid Firefighters 

Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Retirees and beneficiaries 
currently receiving benefits 104 107 83 

Terminated employees entitled to 
deferred benefits 28 9 1 

Active employees: 
Vested 98 60 9 
Partially vested 81 45 50 

Total 311 221 143 

Benefits for all three plans vary depending on specific agreements with each group of 
employees. The Police are eligible for normal retirement at age 50 and after completion of 20 
years and six months of service. Paid Firefighters are eligible for normal retirement at age 50, 
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after completion of 20 years of service if hired before January I, 1988, or after completion of 
20 years and 6 months of service if hired on or after January I, 1988. Officers and Employees 
are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, after completion of 20 years of service if hired 
before January 1, 1978, or completion of 5 years of service if hired on or after January 1, 
1978, or after completion of 40 years of service, regardless of age. 

Paid firefighters hired prior to January I, 1988 receive a monthly pension increase equal to 
50% of the dollar increase granted to active firemen of the highest pay grade. The police 
receive a monthly pension increase equal to 50% of the dollar increase granted to active 
patrolmen of the highest pay grade to all eligible members. For certain firefighters pension 
plan members and police pension plan members retired between January I, 2003 and January 
15, 2003, the annual pension increase is equal to 4%. 

Required employee contributions for Police are 5% of salary plus $1 per month. Paid 
Firefighters contributions are 5% of salary plus $1 per month if hired prior to January I, 1988, 
5% of salary if hired on or after January I, 1988, and 6% of salary if hired on or after January 
1, 2007. Officers and Employees contributions are 2% plus 1/2% of salary for service 
increment (if opted) if hired before January I, 1978, or 2% of salary if hired on or after 
January 1, 1978. 

Effective with the 1985 plan year, the City has participated in Level III of the Act 205 
Recovery Program, a Commonwealth of Pennsylvania program that reduces contribution 
requirements and subsidizes underfunded pension plans. Eligibility to participate in Level III 
is based on the distress determination of the City as provided by the Public Employee 
Retirement Study Commission based on the procedures specified in Chapter 5 of Act 205. The 
Commission has determined the City to be a severely distressed municipality. 

During the year ended December 31,2013, state aid of$1,961,601 was deposited into the Debt 
Service Fund to pay the debt service payments for the 1995 general obligation bonds issued to 
help fund the pension plan. Pages 77 to 79 of this report provide six-year historical trend 
information on the contributions to the pension plans, as well as an analysis of funding 
progress. 

60 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost 

The City establishes and amends the contribution requirements of both the plan members and 
the City. Costs of administering the plans are funded by the plans. The City's annual pension 
cost for the current year and related information for each plan is as follows: 

Officers and Paid 
Employees Police Pension Firefighters 

Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Annual pension cost $ 757,667 $ 3,428,955 $ 1,521,930 
Contributions made by 

December 31,2013 272,624 32,529 

Annual pension cost due at 
December 31,2013 $ 485,043 $ 3,428,955 $ 1,489,401 

Due from City of York: 
Portion of2012 minimum 

municipal obligation 
funded subsequent to 
December 31, 2013 $ $ 567,509 $ 

Portion of 2013 minimum 
municipal obligation 
funded subsequent to 
December 31,2013 485,043 3,428,955 1,489,401 

Accumulated interest on 
minimum municipal obligation 
funded subsequent 
to December 31,2013 40,258 799,437 123,620 

Total due from City of York as 
of December 31,2013 $ 525,301 $ 4,795,901 $ 1,613,021 
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Officers and 
Employees Police Pension Paid Firefighters 

Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Actuarial valuation date 111/2013 111/2013 111/2013 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal 

Level dollar 
Level dollar Level dollar 

closed, Level 
closed, Level closed, Level 

percentage of 
percentage of percentage of 

Amortization method 
projected payroll 

projected payroll projected payroll 
for COLA for COLA 

for Initial Base 
amendment amendment 

Closed 
closed closed 

Remaining amortization 
19 years 29 years 26 years 

period 
Five year 

Five year 
Five year 

smoothed smoothed 
method with the 

smoothed method 
method with the 

value of assets at 
with the value of 

value of assets at 
Asset valuation method a maximum of 

assets at a 
a maximum of 

120% and a 
maximum of 

120% and a 
minimum of 

120% and a 
minimum of 

minimum of 80% 
80% of market 

of market value 
80% of market 

value value 
Actuarial assumptions: 
Investment rate of return 8% 8% 8% 
Projected salary increases 
includes inflation 5% 5% 5% 

Cost of living adjustment 5% 5% 
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Three-year trend information is as follows: 

Percentage 

Year Annual Pension ofAPC Net Pension 

Officers and 
Employees Pension 

Plan 

Police Pension Plan 

Paid Firefighters 
Pension Plan 

Ended 

2013 
2012 

2011 

2013 
2012 
2011 

2013 
2012 
2011 

Cost (APC) 

$ 757,667 

762,020 
759,447 

$ 3,428,955 
3,509,807 
3,384,038 

$ 1,521,930 
1,756,473 
1,715,778 

Funding Status and Schedule of Funding Progress: 

contributed Obligation 

100% $ 
100% 
100% 

100% $ 
100% 
100% 

100% $ 
100% 
100% 

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about wbether the 
actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits. 

UAALasa 
Actuarial Actuarial Overfunded Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Accrued (Unfunded) Funded Covered of Covered 
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (a-b) (alb) (c) ((a-b)/c) 

Officers and Employees Pension Plan: 

111/2013 $ 20,996,579 $ 27,527,632 $ (6,531,053) 76.3% $ 7,459,574 -87.6% 

Police Pension Plan: 

111/2013 $ 44,072,678 $ 83,525,884 $ (39,453,206) 52.8% $ 6,986,665 -564.7% 

Paid Firefighters Pension Plan: 

111/2013 $ 25,983,937 $ 44,675,326 $ (18,691,389) 58.2% $ 3,487,640 -535.9% 
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The City was utilizing the Level III provision allowing for delayed implementation of the 
actuarial funding standards specified in Act 205 over a period not to exceed 15 years. In 1995, 
it was anticipated that the proceeds from the City's issuance of $32 million in pension bonds 
would fully fund each of the plans. The State requires the City to continue calculating its 
minimum municipal obligation for Act 205 purposes exclusive of the bond proceeds. This 
minimum municipal obligation will be used as a factor in determining the amount of State 
pension aid the City is entitled to under Act 205. Act 205 provides that the funding of 
unfunded pension liabilities with bond proceeds will not reduce the State pension aid that 
would be due the City, absent such funding. State aid has been pledged as security for the 
debt service on the pension bonds. 

Pension assets consist primarily of mutual funds and common stocks. 

Police and Paid Firefighters Pensions Litigation 

In 1992, grievances were filed by the police union and firefighters' union claiming the City 
violated the collective bargaining agreements by changing the method of calculating the cost 
of living pension benefits in 1972. These claims went to arbitration and, in 1994, the arbitrator 
ruled that the method of calculating the cost of living pension benefit be revised to the method 
used before it was unlawfully changed retroactive to 1992. 

The revisions to each of the plans as provided by the aforementioned arbitrator's awards 
(awards) required the City to contribute an additional $3.7 million for ten years beginning in 
1996 and an additional $1.9 million for ten years beginning in 2006, as determined by the 
City's actuaries, to fully fund the pensions in accordance with Level III of the Act 205 
Recovery Program. However, the City had received authorization from the Public Employee 
Retirement Commission to suspend these payments as long as the dispute continued in 
litigation or negotiation. 

In May 2004, the City received notification that they were required to fully reflect all of the 
pension benefits provided under the 1994 arbitration awards in the Act 205 Actuarial 
Valuation Reports prepared as of January l, 2005, in order to comply with the actuarial 
reporting and funding standards mandated under Act 205. The City has been advised by their 
actuary that the unfunded accrued liability related to the arbitration award is $26.5 million as 
of the valuation date ofJanuary I, 2005. 

The City researched various funding methods to meet the added cost of the annual minimum 
municipal obligation including an amendment to Act 205 allowing for a thirty year level 
percentage amortization schedule using a five percent annual increase or a taxable 30 year 
bond issue. The City sought the assistance of the state legislature to enact an amendment to 
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Act 205 to allow for the extended amortization and, on November 30, 2004, Act 200 of 2004 
was signed into law allowing for the extended amortization. 

In 2006, the City commenced funding the obligation pursuant to the extended 30 year 
amortization period. Under the extended amortization period, the annual minimum municipal 
obligation related to the pension arbitration increased approximately $1.3 million, excluding 
annual normal costs, for the year ended December 31, 2006. The relative increase in 
minimum municipal obligation will continue to increase 5% each year over the 30-year 
amortization period. The annual minimum municipal obligation for the Fire and Police 
Pension funds are appropriated in the City's General Fund in the police and fire departments. 

Since 2008, the City has maintained cash flow by delaying the payment of its pension 
minimum municipal obligation (MMO) to the subsequent year. However, as the delayed 
payment approaches the full amount of the MMO, tbe ability of the City to continue 
unreduced operations becomes more tenuous. Eventually, resources will be exhausted before 
the City reaches the end of the year and services will be drastically reduced. 

The combining information for the plans is as follows: 

Officers and Paid 

Employees Police Pension Firefighters 
Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Investments, at fair value $ 23,136,901 $ 45,540,409 $ 27,223,133 

Due from City of York 525,301 4,795,901 1,613,021 

Total assets $ 23,662,202 $ 50,336,310 $ 28,836,154 

Net position $ 23,662,202 $ 50,336,310 $ 28,836,154 
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Officers and Paid 
Employees Police Pension Firefighters 

Pension Plan Plan Pension Plan 

Additions: 
Contributions: 
Employee contributions $ 150,081 $ 343,712 $ 174,357 
Employer contributions 757,667 3,428,955 1,521,930 

Total contributions 907,748 3,772,667 1,696,287 

Investment income: 
Interest and dividend income 314,976 981,738 499,963 

Net appreciation of investments 2,760,647 5,445,714 3,246,988 

3,075,623 6,427,452 3,746,951 
Less investment expenses (82,967) (160,643) (97,899) 

Net investment income 2,992,656 6,266,809 3,649,052 

Total additions 3,900,404 10,039,476 5,345,339 

Deductions: 
Benefit payments 1,360,503 3,350,602 2,343,304 

Total deductions 1,360,503 3,350,602 2,343,304 

Change in net position 2,539,901 6,688,874 3,002,035 

Net position, beginning of year 21,122,301 43,647,436 25,834,119 

Net position, end of year $ 23,662,202 $ 50,336,310 $ 28,836,154 

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Plan Descriptions 

In addition to the retirement benefits described in Note 15, the City provides single-employer 
health care benefits for all retired employees and their spouses under the various union 
contracts and City policy for non-organized employees. These benefit provisions and all other 
requirements are established under the various union contracts and City policy for non­
organized employees. The retired employees are required to pay monthly to the City, one-half 
of the actual cost subject to annual co-payment limitation established in each of the union 
contracts and by Council for non-organized employees. The plan does not issue separate 
financial statements. 
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Non-Organized Employees and Supervisory Personnel Plan, York Public Employee 
Association Plan, and Electrical Workers Plan: 

Benefits are payable for members who retire from the City after attainment of age 55 or upon 
completion of 40 years of service, regardless of age. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. The group medical plan 
includes medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits. At age 65 and greater, the 
plan becomes secondary to Medicare and has a $5,000 lifetime maximum. There are no 
prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits after age 65. Spouses are covered under the plan 
indefinitely. 

Police Plan: 

Benefits are payable for members who retire from the City after completion of 20 (or 20.5 if 
hired after January I, 1978) years of service. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. The group medical plan 
includes medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits. At age 65 and greater, the 
plan becomes secondary to Medicare. Spouses are covered under the plan indefinitely. 

Teamsters Plan: 

Benefits are payable for members who retire from the City after attainment of combined age 
and service totaling 80 years. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. The group medical plan 
includes medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits. At age 65 and greater, the 
plan becomes secondary to Medicare and has a $5,000 lifetime maximum. There are no 
prescription drug, dental and vision benefits after age 65. Spouses are covered under the plan 
indefinitely. 

Firefighters Plan: 

Benefits are payable for members who retire from the City after attainment of age 50 and 
completion of20 (or 20.5 if hired after January I, 1988) years of service. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. The group medical plan 
includes medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision benefits. At age 65 and greater, the 
plan becomes secondary to Medicare. Prescription drug, dental, and vision coverage are 
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available for the lifetime of the member or spouse. Spouses are covered under the plan 
indefinitely. 

The York Public Employee Association, Police, Teamsters, Electrical Workers, and 
Firefighter union labor contracts for the uniformed and nonuniformed employees establish the 
post-employment health care plan provisions. Such union contracts may be amended through 
future negotiations. The post-employment health care plan provisions for non-union 
employees are established by Council. 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Costs 

The City's contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements through 
the Internal Service Fund. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the City's net cost of 
providing full health care benefits for retired employees was $2,462,534. Plan members 
receiving benefits contributed $207,481, through their contributions as required by the cost 
sharing provisions of the plans. 

Union labor contracts and City Council establish and amend the obligations of the plan 
members and the City to contribute to the plans. 

Eligible retirees may participate in the City's group medical plan. In order to maintain 
coverage, retirees must make the following annual contributions in accordance with the plans: 

Non-Organized Employees and Supervisory Personnel Plan - For retirees under the 
age of 65, the annual contributions were $700 for the retiree and $700 for 
spouses/dependents. For retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are 
$103.32 for retirees and $103.32 for spouses/dependents. 

York Public Employee Association Plan - Before January I, 2013, the annual 
contributions for retirees under the age of 65 were $900 for the retiree and $700 for 
spouses/dependents. After January I, 2013, the retiree must contribute 50% ofthe cost 
up to the following annual maximums: 

Date of Retirement Retirees 
1/1/90-12/31/03 $ 700 
111/04 and later 900 

Dependents 
$ 700 

700 

For retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are $103.32 for retirees and 
$103.32 for spouses/dependents. 
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Electrical Workers Plan- For retirees under the age of 65, the annual contributions are 
as follows: 

Spouses/ 
Date of Hire Date of Retirement Retirees Dq~endents 

Prior to 9/1/08 Prior to 911108 $ 750 $ 750 
Prior to 911/08 9/1/08 - 12/31108 900 700 
Prior to 911108 111109- 12/31/09 1,000 800 
Prior to 911108 111110-12/31110 1,100 900 
Prior to 911108 111/11- 12/31111 1,200 1,000 
Prior to 9/1108 1/1112- 12/31/12 1,300 1,100 
911108 and later COBRA rate COBRA rate 

For retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are $103.32 for retirees and 
$103.32 for spouses/dependents. 

Police Plan- For all retirees, the annual contributions are as follows: 

Date of Retirement Retirees 
Prior to 111107 $ 700 
7/1107 and later 1,100 

Spouses/ 
Dependents 
$ 700 

1,100 

Teamsters Plan - For retirees under the age of 65, the annual contributions are as 
follows: 

Spouses/ 
Date of Hire Date of Retirement Retirees Deeendents 

Prior to 7/25/08 Prior to 12/31/08 $ 900 $ 700 
Prior to 7/25/08 1/1/09 - 12/31109 1,000 800 
Prior to 7125108 1/1110-12/31110 1,100 900 
Prior to 7/25/08 111/11 - 12/31111 1,200 1,000 
Prior to 7/25/08 111112- 12/31112 1,300 1,100 
7/25/08 and later COBRA rate COBRA rate 

For retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are $103.32 for retirees and 
$103.32 for spouses/dependents. 
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Firefighters Plan - For retirees under the age of 65 who retired prior to January 1, 
2007, the annual contributions are $700 for the retiree and $700 for 
spouses/dependents. After October 2, 2009, the annual contributions were to be 
$1,100 for the retiree and $1,100 for spouses/dependents; however, the City did not 
begin enacting these contributions until November 1, 2013. For retirees under the age 
of 65 who retired on or after January 1, 2007, the annual contributions for the retiree 
and spouse are determined at the time of retirement. An independent audit will be 
performed each year to determine the average cost per participant incurred in the plan 
and the third previous year. The retiree and spouse will be responsible to contribute 
25% of the cost determined in the audit. The contribution for the retiree and spouse 
determined at the time of retirement can be no more than 10% higher than the 
contribution determined for a participant that retired in the previous year. 

For all retirees over the age of 65, the annual contributions are $405.36 for retirees and 
$469.44 for spouses/dependents. 

The City's annual OPEB costs (expense) for the plan is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined. The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost 
each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period 
not to exceed thirty years. 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the 
funded status of the plan and the ARC are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of 
funding progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of 
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial rep01ting purposes are based on the substantive plan and 
include the types of benefits provided at the time of the valuation and on the historical pattern 
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term 
perspective of the calculation. The projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes do 
not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the 
pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future. 

70 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Actuarial valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization period 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Interest rate 

Salary increases 

Medical inflation 

1/1/2011 

Entry age normal, level dollar 

30 years, open period 

4.5% 

5% per year 

8% in 2011, decreasing by 
0.5% per year to to 5.5% in 

2016; rates gradually decrease 
from 5.3% in 2017 to 4.2% in 
2089 and later based on the 

Society of Actuaries Long-Run 
Medical Cost Trend Model 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

The City's annual OPEB costs and net OPEB obligations to the plan for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 were as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Annual required contribution $ 5,271,798 $ 80,454 $ 5,352,252 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 712,819 10,878 723,697 
Adjustment to annual required 

contribution (972,465) (14,841) (987,306) 

Annual OPEB Cost 5,012,152 76,491 5,088,643 
Contribution made (2,425,518) (37,016) (2,462,534) 

Change in Net OPEB obligation 2,586,634 39,475 2,626,109 
Net OPEB obligation, beginning 14,407,204 351,468 14,758,672 

Net OPEB obligation, ending $ 16,993,838 $ 390,943 $ 17,384,781 
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Three-Year Trend Information 

Percentage of 
AnnualOPEB AOC NetOPEB 

Year Cost (AOC) Contributed Obligation 

2013 $ 5,088,643 48.39% $ 17,384,781 
2012 5,140,349 52.95% 14,758,672 
2011 5,185,901 46.67% 12,340,282 

Funded Status and Schedule of Funding Progress 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial UAALas a 
Actuarial Accrued Overfunded Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) (Unfunded) Funded Covered of Covered 
Valuation Assets - Entry Age AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) b (a-b) (alb) c) ((a-b)/c) 

1/1/2011 $ $ 56,035,277 $ (56,035,277) 0.00% $ 17,946,883 -312.23% 

17. RlSKMANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to major medical self-insurance. The City 
has a stop/loss agreement with an insurance company which covers all individual claim 
amounts exceeding $175,000. Premiums are paid into the internal service fund by all other 
funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves, and administrative costs of the program. 

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred 
but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of recent claim 
settlement trends as determined by the City's independent third-party administrator. 
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Changes in the balances of claims liability (net of excess insurance) during the past three years 
ended December 31, 2013 were as follows: 

Year Current Year Claims and Claim EndofYear 
Liability Changes in Estimates Payments Liability 

20ll $ 398,752 $ 7,824,885 $ 7,792,762 $ 430,875 
2012 430,875 7,991,026 8,069,484 352,417 
2013 352,417 6,926,351 6,221,293 1,057,475 

In addition, the City is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; error, and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These 
risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. Settled 
claims from these risks did not exceed commercial insurance coverage during the years ended 
December 31,2013,2012, and 2011 with the exception of the pension litigation disclosed in 
Note 15. 

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Leases 

The City also has several leases for vehicles used in City operations. The future minimum 
commitments for these leases are not material to the City's operations. 

The City has also entered into several noncancelable operating leases for office equipment. 
The future minimum commitments for these leases are not material to the City's operations. 

Grants 

Grants received are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal 
government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a 
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed 
by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if 
any, to be immaterial. However, the Redevelopment Authority has used its best estimate to 
report an allowance based on currently known facts and circumstances. 

Contract Commitment 

During 2012, the City, through the Capital Projects Fund, entered into contracts with 
construction contractors totaling $4,848,165. At December 31, 2013, $427,153 was included 
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in accounts payable. The commitment remaining on the contracts at December 31, 2013 was 
$1,039,955. 

19. MANAGEMENT'S AGREEMENT WITH THE GENERAL AUTHORITY 

The City has entered into a management and an administration agreement with the General 
Authority to operate, manage, and administer the General Authority's parking system. The 
management agreement requires that the General Authority pay the City a management fee to 
the General Fund in twelve equal installments. The City incurred $656,753 in operating 
expenses and received $905,921 in fees under the management agreement in 2013. The City 
received $141,000 in administrative fees under an administration agreement in 2013. A 
receivable of $732,717 is recorded in the General Fund for fees that were earned under these 
agreements, but unpaid at December 31, 2013. 

Under the management agreement between the General Authority and the City, the General 
Authority is entitled to receive an adjustment to the management fee billed from the City if 
actual expenses were less than budgeted expenses. As of December 31, 2013, the General 
Authority owed the City $732,717, which included seven monthly hilled amounts from the 
City for the year ended December 31,2012 that were not paid as ofDecemher 31,2013. The 
City and the General Authority are currently in discussions to determine if there will be 
adjustments made to the amounts due to the City from the General Authority. As of the report 
date, the amount of any adjustment could not be determined. 

20. LITIGATION 

The City is a party to numerous lawsuits that have arisen in the ordinary course of business. It 
is the opinion of management, as advised by legal counsel, that these suits will not have a 
material effect on the financial statements of the City, with the exception of the pension 
litigation discussed in Note 15. 

The Redevelopment Authority is involved with litigation regarding a property that was 
condemned and obtained by eminent domain. The owner is challenging the valuation of the 
property. As the case is under appeals and a final valuation has not been decided, no liability 
has been recorded at this time. 

21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In January of 2014, the City borrowed $5,700,000 in the form of a Tax and Revenue 
Anticipation Note, Series of 2014, bearing interest at an annual rate of 1.00% until June 2014, 
and thereafter. 
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Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget- Budget-

Original Final Positive Positive 
Buds;et Buds;et (Negative} Actual (Ne!?iative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 22,493,954 $ 22,493,954 $ $ 23,039,253 $ 545,299 
Licenses and permits 1,678,300 1,678,300 1,702,577 24,277 
Fines and forfeits 1,846,250 1,846,250 1,650,787 (195,463) 
Grants and contributions 2,027,807 2,027,807 1,374,377 (653,430) 
Charges for services 8,876,998 8,980,998 104,000 8,440,547 (540,451) 
Interest 14,894 14,894 
Miscellaneous 58,800 58,800 212,693 153,893 

Total revenues 36,982,109 37,086,109 104,000 36,435,128 (650,981) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 2,246,185 2,288,986 (42,801) 1,771,795 517,191 
Sanitation 3,236,738 3,173,743 62,995 3,027,744 145,999 
Public safety 26,339,795 26,339,844 (49) 27,994,840 (1,654,996) 
Highways and streel') 718,072 718,072 687,982 30,090 
Public works 2,777,373 2,818,123 (40,750) 2,554,872 263,251 
Community development 
and platming 2,265,870 2,377,871 (112,001) 2,232,993 144,878 

Other departments and 
programs 206,917 198,917 8,000 195,405 3,512 

Debt service 32,280 (32,280) 

Total expenditures 37,790,950 37,915,556 (124,606) 38,497,911 (582,355) 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 
expenditures (808,841) (829,447) (20,606) (2,062,783) (1,233,336) 

Other financing 
sources (uses): 

Transfers in 2,654,767 2,654,767 2,654,767 
Transfers out (1,429,606) (1,410,905) 18,701 (1,359,351) 51,554 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 1,225,161 1,243,862 18,701 1,295,416 51,554 

Net change in fund 
balance $ 416,320 $ 414,415 $ (1,905) $ (767,367) $ (1, 181, 782) 
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1. BUDGETARY DATA 

The City's budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis. 

2. BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISONS 

The General Fund's budget comparison is presented in the Required Supplementary 
Information section. The budgeted nonmajor funds and major debt service fund and 
capital projects fund budget comparisons are presented in the combining section. 

3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 

Public safety 
Debt service 

Appropriation 
$ 26,339,844 

Expenditure 
$ 27,994,840 

32,280 

Funds sufficient to provide for the excess expenditures were made available from other 
funds. 
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The following schedule represents the fimding progress and contributions from the City for the Officers' 
and Employees' Pension Plan: 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Entry Age Ovcrfunded 
Value of Actuarial Accrued (Unfunded) 
Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Ratio 

Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) (a/b) 

1/1/03 $ 17,583,625 $ 15,879,934 $ 1,703,691 110.7% $ 
111/05 19,138,231 17,848,189 1,290,042 107.2% 
111107 21,302,613 19,688,657 1,613,956 108.2% 
111109 19,756,874 22,301,395 (1) (2,544,521) 88.6% 
111111 21,366,032 24,567,150 (3,201,118) 87.0% 
1/1113 20,996,579 27,527,632 (6,531,053) 76.3% 

Schedule of Contributions from the Employer 

Annual Contributions 
Required ft·om 

Calendar Year Contribution Employer 

2008 $ 335,270 $ 335,270 
2009 344,088 344,088 
2010 376,684 376,684 
20ll (2) 759,447 759,447 
2012 (3) 762,020 762,020 
2013 (4) 757,667 757,667 

Covet·ed 
Payroll 

(c) 

6,186,006 
6,386,560 
6,238,323 
7,387,463 
7,600,411 
7,459,574 

Pct·centagc 
Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

Overfundcd 
(Unfunded) 
AALasa% 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((a-b)/c) 

27.5% 
20.2% 
25.9% 

(34.4%) 
(42.1%) 
(87.6%) 

(l) The actuarial accrued liability increase on the January 1, 2009 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the asset valuation method 
from the market value method to the five-year smoothing method. 

(2) $759,447 was funded in 2012; amount of the total required contribution was accrued as of December 31, 2011. 

{3) $762,020 was funded in 20 13; amount of the total required contribution was accrued as of December 31, 2012. 

(4) $272,624 was funded in 2013; amount of the total required contribution was accrued as of December 31, 2013. 
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The following schedule represents the funding progress and contributions from the City for the Police 
Pension Plan: 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Entry Age Overfunded 
Value of Actuarial Accrued (Unfunded) 
Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Ratio 

Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) (alb) 

1/1/03 $ 32,332,762 $ 39,534,359 $ (7,201,597) 81.8% 
111105 33,350,980 60,516,086 (1) (27,165,106) 55.1% 
111107 36,900,720 64,763,758 (27,863,038) 57.0% 
1/1109 36,453,921 71,734,278 (2) (35,280,357) 50.8% 
llllll 42,073,130 76,631,555 (34,558,425) 54.9% 
1/1/13 44,072,678 83,525,884 (39,453,206) 52.8% 

Schedule of Contributions from the Employer 
Annual Contributions 

Required from 
Calendar Year Contribution Employer 

2008 (3) $ 3,052,400 $ 3,052,400 
2009 (4) 3,120,389 3,120,389 
2010 (5) 3,244,828 3,244,828 
201l (6) 3,384,038 3,384,038 
2012 (7) 3,509,807 3,509,807 
2013 (8) 3,428,955 3,428,955 

Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 

$ 5,304,211 
5,143,232 
5,324,403 
6,218,166 
6,250,388 
6,986,665 

Percentage 
Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

Overfunded 
(Unfunded) 
AALasa% 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((a-b)/c) 

(135.8%) 
(528.2%) 
(523.3%) 
(567.4%) 
(552.9%) 
(564.7%) 

(I) The actuarial accrued liability increase on the January 1, 2005 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the postretirement 
cost of living benefit. 

(2) The actuarial accrued liability increase on the Januazy l, 2009 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the asset valuation method 
from the market value method to the five-year smoothing method. 

(3) $1,066,251 was funded as of December 31, 2008 and $1,986,149 was funded in 2009; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31, 2008. 

(4) $417,160 was funded as of December 31, 2009 and $2,703,229 was funded in 20 10; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31, 2009. 

(5) $400,480 was funded as of December 31, 2010 and $2,844,348 was funded in 20 11; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31,2010. 

(6) $3,255,326 was funded in 2012 and $128,712 was funded in 2013; amount of the total required contribution was accrued as 
ofDecember 31, 2011. 

(7) $2,942,298 was funded in 2013; amountofthe total required contribution was accrued as of December 31, 2012. 

(8) Amount of the total required contribution was accrued as of December 31,2013. 

78 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND CONTRJBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER 
PAID FIREFIGHTERS PENSION PLAN 
(UNAUDITED- SEE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT) 

The following schedule represents the funding progress and contributions from the City for the Paid 
Firefighters Pension Plan. 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Entry Age Overfundcd 
Value of Actuarial Accrued (Unfunded) 
Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Ratio 

Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) (alb) 

111103 $ 22,160,652 $ 25,337,706 $ (3,177,054) 87.5% 
111/05 22,436,006 38,117,710 (1) (15,681,704) 58.9% 
1/1107 24,114,327 40,781,209 (16,666,882) 59.1% 
111/09 23,246,959 42,684,783 (2) (19,437,824) 54.5% 
lll/11 26,159,700 43,362,544 (17,202,844) 60.3% 
111113 25,983,937 44,675,326 (18,691,389) 58.2% 

Schedule of Contributions from the Employer 
Annual Contributions 

Required from 
Calendar Year Contribution Eml!loycr 

2008 (3) $ 1,681,387 $ 1,681,387 
2009 (4) 1,785,031 1,785,031 
2010 (5) 1,805,386 1,805,386 
2011 (6) 1,715,778 1,715,778 
2012 (7) 1,756,473 1,756,473 
2013 (8) 1,521,930 1,521,930 

Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 

$ 3,398,215 
3,496,489 
3,634,509 
3,800,645 
3,869,316 
3,487,640 

Pe1·centage 
Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

Overfunded 
(Unfunded) 
AALasa% 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((a-b)/c) 

(93.5%) 
(448.5%) 
(458.6%) 
(5ll.4%) 
(444.6%) 
(535.9%) 

(1) The actuarial accrued liability increase on the January 1, 2005 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the postretirement 
cost of living benefit. 

(2) The actuarial accrued liability increase on the January 1, 2009 actuarial valuation is due to a change in the asset valuation method 
from the market value method to the five-year smoothing method. 

(3) $598,479 was funded as of December 31, 2008 and $1,082,908 was funded in 2009; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as ofDecember 31,2008. 

(4) $238,752 was funded as of December 31, 2009 and $1,546,279 was funded in 20 10; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31, 2009. 

(5) $222,836 was funded as of December 31, 2010 and $1,582,550 was fw1ded in 2011; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31,2010. 

(6) $1,715,778 was funded in 2012 ; amount of the total required contribution wa<: accrued as of December 31, 2011. 

(7) $10,243 was funded as of December 31, 2012 and $1,746,230 was funded in 2013; amount of the total required contribution 
was accrued as of December 31,2012. 

(8) $32,529 was funded as of December 31, 2013; amount of the total required contribution was accrued as of December 31, 2013. 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND CONTRlBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER 
OTHER POST -EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
(UNAUDITED- SEE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT) 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial 
Actuarial Accrued Ovcrfundcd 
Value of Liability (AAL) (Unfunded) Covered 
Assets -Entry Age AAL :Funded Ratio Payroll 

Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) (alb) (c) 

1/1107 $ $ 48,995,002 $ (48,995,002) 0.00% $ 15,047,604 
111109 52,664,914 (52,664,914) 0.00% 17,256,761 

111111 56,035,227 (56,035,227) 0.00% 17,946,883 

Schedule of Contributions from the Employer 

Annual 
Required Percentage 

Calendar Year Contribution Contributed 

2009 $ 4,808,544 38.02% 
2010 5,344,602 34.68% 
2011 5,344,602 45.28% 
2012 5,352,252 50.86% 
2013 5,352,252 46.01% 
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Overfunded 
(Unfunded) 
AALasa 

Percentage 
of Covered 

Payt·oll 
((a-b)/c) 

(325.60%) 
(305.18%) 
(312.23%) 



Supplementary Information 



S ecial Revenue Total 
Section 108- State Special State Grant Nonmajor 
Rebuild York Liquid Fuels Projects HOME Healtl1 Weyer Govemmcntal 

Fund Tax Fund Fund Fund Funds Trust Funds 

$ $ 143,418 $ 404,448 $ 70,429 $ $ 6,028 $ 754,564 

1,459,542 3,372,746 

136,579 
769 27,140 245,624 429,636 

60,000 

$ $ 144,187 $ 431,588 $ 1,529,971 $ 245,624 $ 6,028 $ 4,753,525 

$ $ 144,621 $ 31,217 $ $ 27,109 $ 4 $ 273,791 
6,122 16,536 3,456 41,556 

780,690 1,300,693 
70,429 73,583 

20,807 1,459,542 3,412, 193 

150,743 52,024 1,529,971 824,335 3,460 5,101,816 

124,754 

379,564 379,564 
2,568 86,041 

(6,556) (578,711) (938,650) 

(6,556) 379,564 (578,711) 2,568 (473,045) 

$ $ 144,187 $ 431,588 $ 1,529,971 $ 245,624 $ 6,028 $ 4,753,525 
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S ecial Revenue Total 
Section 108 - State Special State Grant Nomnajor 
Rebuild York Liquid Fuels Projects HOME Health Weyer Govenunental 

Fund Tax Fund Fund Fund Fund Trust Funds 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 1,215,474 
794,389 196,219 397,888 1,273,977 128,888 4,128,685 

109,594 53,165 714,530 
108,986 

134 1,183 12 1,335 
11,803 80 337 5 633 155,096 

806,326 387 333 451 053 1,279 610 128,900 6,324,106 

149,107 149,107 
26,914 26,914 

573,346 573,346 
34,529 34,529 
52,632 1,468,337 
86,174 451,053 145,695 1,462,271 

1,368,136 1,368,136 

66,976 306,976 
3,153 129,595 

101,768 18,172 9,000 452,608 

745,243 367,528 451,053 1,377,136 145 695 5,971,819 

61,083 19,805 (97,526) (16,795) 352,287 

90,458 
(184,148) 

(93,690) 

61,083 19,805 (97,526) (16,795) 258,597 

(67,639) 359,759 (481,185) 19,363 (731,642) 

$ $ (6,556) $ 379 564 $ $ (578,711) $ 2 568 $ (473,045) 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
DEBT SERVICE FUND- MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 I, 20!3 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget w Budget-

Original Final Positive Positive 
Budget Budget (Negative) Actual (Negative} 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 3,085,276 $ 3,085,276 $ $ 2,989,073 $ (96,203) 
Grants and contributions 1,967,013 1,967,500 487 1,961,601 (5,899) 
Charges for setYices 147,712 147,712 
Interest 36,678 36,678 

Total revenues 5,052,289 5,052,776 487 5,135,064 82,288 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General govenunent 20,938 21,425 (487) 5,996 15,429 
Debt service 5,609,692 5,609,692 5,609,692 

Total expenditures 5,630,630 5,631,117 (487) 5,615,688 15,429 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues (under) 
expenditures (578,341) (578,341) (480,624) 97,717 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 1,240,813 1,240,813 1,199,537 (41,276) 
Transfers out (620,596) (620,596) (620,596) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 620,217 620,217 578,941 (41,276) 

Net change in fund balance $ 41,876 $ 41,876 $ $ 98,317 $ 56,441 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND- MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget- Budget-

Original Final Positive Positive 
Budg;et Budget (Negative) Actual (Ne/il;ative) 

Revenues: 
Grants and contributions $ 5,762,355 $ 6,171,599 $ 409,244 $ 2,692,126 $ (3,479,473) 
Interest 265 265 

Total revenues 5,762,355 6,171,599 409,244 2,692,391 (3,479,208) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 197,219 (197,219) 
Debt service 557,536 557,536 557,536 
Capital outlay 5,776,638 6,208,221 (431,583) 4,393,113 1,815,108 

Total expenditures 6,334,174 6,765,757 ( 431,583) 5,147,868 1,617,889 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 
expenditures (571,819) (594, 158) (22,339) (2,455,477) (1,861,319) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 851,783 874,027 22,244 799,875 (74, 152) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 851,783 874,027 22,244 799,875 (74, 152) 

Net change in fund balance $ 279,964 $ 279,869 $ (95) $ (1,655,602) $ (1,935,471) 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
RECREATION FUND- OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget- Budget~ 

Original Final Positive Positive 
Budget Budget (Negative) Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 1,212,936 $ 1,212,936 $ $ 1,215,474 $ 2,538 
Grants and contributions 2,970 2,970 
Charges for services 576,000 576,000 551,721 (24,279) 
Miscellaneous 60,500 60,500 57,323 (3,177) 

Total revenues 1,849,436 1,849,436 1,827,488 (21,948) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Parks and recreation 1,755,701 1,755,701 1,415,705 339,996 

Total expenditures I 755,701 1,755,701 1,415,705 339,996 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues (under) 
expenditures 93,735 93,735 411,783 318,048 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out (93,735) (93,735) (93,690) 45 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (93,735) (93,735) (93,690) 45 

Net change in fund balance $ $ $ $ 318,Q93 $ 318,093 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND- OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget- Budget~ 

Original Final Positive Positive 
Bud~et Budget (Ne~ative) Aetual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Grants and contributions $ 1,927,193 $ 2,201,324 $ 274,131 $ 1,145,262 $ (1,056,062) 
Charges for services 50 50 

Total revenues 1,927,193 2,201,324 274,131 1,145,312 (1,056,012) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Community development 
and plarming 1,369,507 1,643,638 (274,131) 545,660 1,097,978 

Debt service 557,686 557,686 366,442 191,244 
Capital outlay 323,668 (323,668) 

Total expenditures 1,927,193 2,201,324 (274,131) 1,235,770 965,554 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 
expenditures (90,458) (90,458) 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 90,458 90,458 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 90,458 90,458 

Net change in fund balance $ $ $ $ $ 

88 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STATE LIQUID FUELS TAX FUND- OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget- Budget-

Otiginal Final Positive Positive 
Budget Budget (Ne~ative} Actual (Negative} 

Revenues: 
Grants and contributions $ 792,500 $ 792,500 $ $ 794,389 $ 1,889 
Interest 1,000 1,000 134 (866) 
Miscellaneous 11,803 11,803 

Total revenues 793,500 793,500 806,326 12,826 

Expenditures: 
Cun·ent: 

Highways and streets 725,996 766,4!2 (40,416) 573,346 193,066 
Debt service 70,129 70,129 70,129 
Capital outlay 69,871 29,455 40,416 101,768 (72,313) 

Total expenditures 865,996 865,996 745,243 120,753 

Net change in fund balance $ (72,496) $ (72,496) $ $ 61,083 $ 133,579 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STATE HEALTH GRANT FUND- OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Variance Variance 
of Original of Actual 
with Final with Final 
Budget~ Budget-

Original Final Positive Positive 
Bud~et Budget (Negative} Actual (Negative} 

Revenues: 
Grants and contributions $ 1,546,452 $ 1,687,702 $ 141,250 $ 1,273,977 $ (413,725) 
Miscellaneous 6,000 6,000 5,633 (367) 

Total revenues 1,552,452 1,693,702 141,250 1,279,610 (414,092) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Other depmtments and 
programs 1,503,501 1,644,751 (141,250) 1,368,136 276,615 

Capital outlay 9,000 (9,000) 

Total expenditures 1,503,501 1,644,751 (141,250) 1,377,136 267,615 

Net change in fund balance $ 48,951 $ 48,951 $ $ (97,526) $ (146,477) 

90 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION- PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Officers and Paid 
Employees Police Firefighters 

Pension Pension Pension 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

Assets 

Investments, at fair value $ 23,136,901 $ 45,540,409 $ 27,223,133 $ 95,900,443 
Due from City of York 525,301 4,795,901 1,613,021 6,934,223 

Total assets 23,662,202 50,336,310 28,836,154 102,834,666 

Net Position 

Restricted for pension benefits $ 23,662,202 $ 50,336,310 $ 28,836,154 $ 102,834,666 
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CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION- AGENCY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Fire Escrow 
Escrow Fund 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 416,379 $ 275,629 
Accounts receivable 6,529 

Total assets 416,379 282,158 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 416,379 282,158 

Total liabilities $ 416,379 $ 282,158 
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Total 

$ 692,008 
6,529 

698,537 

698,537 

$ 698,537 



CITY OF YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION- PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013 

Officers and Paid 
Employees Police Firefighters 

Pension Pension Pension 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

Additions: 
Contributions: 

Employee contributions $ 150,081 $ 343,712 $ 174,357 $ 668,150 
Employer contributions 757,667 3,428,955 1,521,930 5,708,552 

Total contributions 907,748 3,772,667 1,696,287 6,376,702 

Investment income: 
Interest and dividend income 314,976 981,738 499,963 1,796,677 
Net appreciation of investments 2,760,647 5,445,714 3,246,988 11,453,349 

3,075,623 6,427,452 3,746,951 13,250,026 

Less investment expenses (82,967) (160,643) (97,899) (341,509) 

Net investment income 2,992,656 6,266,809 3,649,052 12,908,517 

Total additions 3,900,404 10,039,476 5,345,339 19,285,219 

Deductions: 
Benefit payments 1,360,503 3,350,602 2,343,304 7,054,409 

Total deductions 1,360,503 3,350,602 2,343,304 7,054,409 

Change in net position 2,539,901 6,688,874 3,002,035 12,230,810 

Net position restricted for pension 
benefits, beginning of year 21,122,301 43,647,436 25,834,ll9 90,603,856 

Net position restricted for pension 
benefits, end of year $ 23,662,202 $ 50,336,310 $ 28,836,154 $ 102,834,666 
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